ADJOURNED MEETING .

EVENI QSESSI N,

8.10 o%clook,
Oounoil Chamber,

. _Oity Hall,

Maroh 3Bth., 1924.

An adjourned speocial meeting of the Oity Council

was held this”Evoxiixig. At the above named hour there

Zoro present His Worship the Mayor, Aldermen Whitman,
anford, Bissett, Castonguay, H. W. Oameron, Guildford
d Whelan.

+10 o%¥clook,

~ Moved by Alderman Whitman, seconded by Alderman
1ssett, that the time of meeting be extended until a
oum is piesent or until 8.30 obclook. Motien Ipa.a'aed.
+30 o%olook. |

Roll oalled, nresent the above named together
ith Aldermen Colwell, Sohaffner, MoDonald, O%Toole,
rysdale, Daw, Hubley and W, O, Cameron.

Mr. W, W. Foster, Oity Auditor, and his Counsel,
Oolonel J, L. Ralston, K. 0., and also Mr. J. MacG.
Stewart, ut:l.ng a-; Counsel for the City, were also pres-
onb. ‘ | k

The meeting was oallod pursuant to an adjourn-
hent from the a7th. instant to proceed with the further
oonsideration of the report of the Finance Committee
dated the 3lst. of February 1934, recommending the dis-
miua.l from office of W. W, Foster, Esq., Oity Auditor.

/_L_!_.__F.‘_QS.T_E_B_._QILI‘MDL_;
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lla_.roh gath,', 1924.

nr. 34 Maoh, Stewart stated that the statement

5.

:ontained in the saventh paragraph of the report of the
Finance Commi ttee covering oha:;gea preferred against Mr
Foster, oculd not be substantiated and suggested that
same be deleted from the reporte

Moved by Alderman Whitmen, seconded by Aldermen

r O, Cameron, that the report of the Finance Committee:
eferred to, dated February 2lst. 1924, recommending the
smigsal of W, W, Foster, City Auditor, be amended by
he deletion of Paragraph 7 of the oharges in the report
whioh raa,d.s as follows.-: |

"And whereas the Committee is further of opinion
“hat in view of the foregoing facte the said v
"Oity Auditor well knew that large sume of money
"bolonging to the City of Halifax were being mis-
"appropriated.™ |

Oolwmel Ralston objeoted, on behalf of his Client,
$o this Motion. |
~ Motion put and passed unanimously - the following
Aldermen being vresent and voting for the same:-

Alderman Colwell
~ Whitman

Sanford
Bisgett
Gagtonguay
Schaffner
H.W.Cameron
MoDonald
Guildford
Whelan
0%Toole
Drysdale
Hubley
W.0.,0ameron
Daw.

Oolonel Ralaton then proceeded with the examination

of Mr. Hopewell, City Tressurer, who was asked to produce

certain books in oconnecticn with the Reserve and Sinking ..
ﬂ‘unde and the transfer of rates arld tgxes in his Doparf_mont.

A.‘lde.rma,n Finlay here arrives and takes his seat in
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Mgroh 28th.,. 1924.

" 'the Gouncils o
| Vlr. Hopewell is then cross examined by Mr,
Stewart. | |
At 9430 oﬂolqok Alderman Ebwor arrives and
takes his seats

f After oross examination of the City Treasurer
éby Mr. Stewart, Colanel Ralston announced that hie case
&as finished.

% Mr. Stewart also stated that his case, for
?ﬁhe Proseoution, was finished.

; - The Oounoil is then addressed at length by
Polqnol Ralston on behalf of nis Olient, Mr. Foater,
and by Mr. Stewart on behalf of the Finance Committee.

f Read letter Alderman Munnis regretting his
inability to be in attendance st the meeting owing to
@baenoe from the City and asking that his votg be
"paired with that of Alderman Schaffner on the question
ﬁow before thé meeting. |

‘ His Worship the Maydar stated that there was
io provision in the rules of Procedure of the Council
%o deal with this matter and ordered that the letter be
ifilod.

i' Acting on the advice of the Solicitors for
ithav01ty, Hig Worship informed the Council that it
}culd be necessary on aocouﬁt of the amendment to the

Report, to amend the resolution adopting same.

Alderman Whitman submits the following res-

olution:-

% RESOLVED that the report of the Finance
ommittee dated the 2let. day of February

A.D,1924, as amended by the deletion of
Paragrwpﬁ No., 7 of the charges in the re-

port which reads as follows -
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| Wn@ of the Charter of 1907 and that W. W, Foster is
WA Lo tpes

March 38th,, 1924.

"AND' WHEREAS the Oommittes is further of op-
" "inion that in view of the foregoing faots
"the sald Olty Auditor well knew that large
"gumg of maney belonging to the Oity of
"Halifax were being misappropriated™,

be now adopted.

That W, W. Foster, City Auditor, be dismiss-
ed from the sald office of City Auditor.

That such dismissal take ef fect forthwith.

That there be paid to the said W, W, Foster
three months® salary in lieu of notice.
. ¥

Moved by Aldorman Whitman, seconded by Alderman
0. Cameron, snd'paospd,'lz voting for the same and
against it as follows:- |
For the Motion:- Against it:-

Alderman Whitman Alderman Colwell
Sanford - Finlay
Bigsett | Schaffner
Gastonguay . Hubley.
McDonald
Guildford
Whelan
0%T oole
Drysdale
W.0.Cameron
Dawe

Hig Worship the Mayor declares the Resolution vass-

d by a two third vote of the Oouncil as required by Seo-

y dismissed from the office of Oity Auditor.
Moved by Alderman Whitman, seconded by Aldermen

EBiasott, that this Oounoil do now adjourn., Motion vass-

ed,

IST OF HE
W.,W.Foster,Oity Auditor 633
| Oounoll adjourned 12,45 o%look, A. M.

H, S. RHIND,

TANT OITY CLERK.
ASSIS 626

(A etonog;'aphio report of this mseting follows,)




HALIFAX CITY OOUNCIL.

The Mayor called the Oouncil to order at 8.30 P. M.
‘The Clerk called the roll,

EHE MAYOR: Before proceeding Mr. Stewart, one of our
iolioitors, desires to make a suggestion and recommendat-

on to the counoil. |
‘ ; STEWART: It is simply thist that the last recital
n the report of the Finance Committee should im my opinion
e deleted from the charges, that on Page 3, Par. 3, be-
inning "Whereas the Committee is further of the opinion..4.
. Bell, His Worship and myself have oconferred upén this

d we are of the opinion that there is not evidence of that
harge in the secondary sense of misappropriation, and that
t 18 better it should be eliminated rather than that it
should cause any misapprehension as to the real meaning,

d the only way in which that ooculd be changed is by amend-

ng the motion, that the report be adopted, omitting the

g

ast reoital thereof.
LD. WHITMAN: If Mr. Stewart advises that, I would move

hat the last recital be struck ocut of the oharges; I move

S ~ A

et

g

hat Par. 7 be deleted.

18. W, O. OAMERON: seconded the Motion.

. RALSTON: Iiwanttto record myself as not oonsenting

o that motion. The motion in effeot is a subsequent mot-

on made after a motion already before the council for

he adoption df the report as a whole, and inocluded in that

Lenort ig this most serious of all the oharges which is

Low, I understand, being abandoned, and still the recomm-
ndation stands that my dlient be diesmissed from office,

ln other words, that the. same punishment be meted out as be-

-l
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March 38, 1924.

fore = the punisbment recomnended before the charge was

deloted. I do not consent, and want to record my objection

to the motion., |

LR. STEWART: I think 1t is only my learned Friend who ocon-
Blders that the gravest of the oharges in the report. lTo
my mind it is the least gravep and always has been the
least grave of all the oharges; and, moreover, I think the
Council is justified in passing the resolution for dismis-

al on any ahe of the other six oharges; and, moreover,
ou oan jJustify the action of council in my opinion in
ourt 1f you ocan establish any one of the other six,

HE MAYOR: The motion now before the oouncil is still the

original motion for the adoption of the report of the
Finance Oommittee; the amendment is that this partioular
gseotion, being Par. 3 of Page 3 of that report, be struok
out, (The paragreph was then read by the Mayor.) This

ig the amendment to the motion now before council.

. RALSTON: And that is what I object to.
HE MAYOR: Let it be oclear that the motion before the
ocuncil is that the report be adopted; and the amendment
s that the report be amended by striking out this part-

ioular paragraphe | |
THE AMENDMENT BEING PUT BY THE MAYOR, IT PASSED

UNANIMOUSLY.

ort. Mr. Ralston you asked to be permlitted to oontinue

IHE MA?OR: We will proceed with the disocussion of the re-

| he examination of Mr. Hopewell.
AMES J. HOPEWELL, being recalled, was then further exam-

¥

ned by Mr. Ralston. |
L‘ Have you produced the cash book and transfer book for

1923-4.
A You have {4 there - the transfer book. ﬁhey are here.




‘Maroh 28, 1924.

Q@ Have you the Minute Book here of the Trustees of

gl

she Sinking and Reserve funds}

| ‘Prbduced | |
Q. This is the only Minute Book of the Trustees?
. That is the oniy one I know. |

A

And are these the statements referred to in the Minutes?
t -6, E-7 and E-8). Those are the statements in the hands
f the City Treasurer and~referred tomin the Minutes of the
eetings of July 16, 1909, March 7, 1900 and November 17,
910, | h

) «- Those are the ooples of the ones that were mentioned'

here '3
I show you the transfer book at present in use; the

nitials in read "G" refers to what - in the right hand

her initial.
Placed there after she eheoked the entry?

argin? . o
‘The aignature of Miss Gowen, the acting auditing; that .
8

Yos.
In reference to the Housing Oommission funds, will you
ell me what, if any, chequing aooount the Housing Commiss-

on hade
I had nothing whatsoever to do with the Housing Oommiss-

on account beyond drawing the cheques for the statements
nat were remitted to me by Mr. Hayes and approved by McCoy

n the Provénoce Bullding.
t ‘The monies of the Housing Oommission were loaned by the
A

!

rovince?
Yess, on the bond of the olty.

And you simply drew oheques payable to persons %0 whom

Loans were being made?

A. I drew the amount from bhe Government that was covered.

by the statement submitted to me and I deposited that in

-Be
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Maroh 28, 1924,

the Housing Commission account in the Royal Bank, and I

rew cheques against the names included in the statement

;nd péased those oheques over to Mr. Hayes and my duties

hen oeased,

» If I were getting a loan from the Housing Commission
he cheque which you drew would be vayable directly to me?

« It would be vayable to you or your order.

-

» I would not go into the Housing Commission funds, into
he tunds,adminstered by the Housing Commission?
. I don™t know. |

Q. ,it oould not if payable to me or my order unless it

as endorsed by me first.

| A, otz toisunmee Yess
5 ,

» Do you know of any funds that the Housing Oommission

ad by way of a banking acoount?

i

—

. It is 6n1y what I assume; I don't know of my own know-

edge. The Hoising Commission collected from the pecple

to whom loans were made,'moﬁth1y instaJménts, and deposited
hem in the bank éocount of their own. )

. Were they deposited in the oity bank acocount or cne

ou had anything to do with?.

. No, the oity had nothing to do with 1%.

. As @ matter of faot, the Housing Commission hatte a |
d out of whioh they cheque for administration expenses?
The oity gave them a grent of $4,000, I think it was

he last year, and $3,500, the yedr'beforé, and I used to

ay it to them quarter;y.
F% Peid to the Housing Oommission?
‘LZ

. Yes.

. $1,000. a‘quarter?

This acocount you speak of, and which you had nothing to

with, and in which you say sollections were deposited,
)

Q. Yess, and $875.
|
i

[
.
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‘March 28, 1924.

- was that foi the benefit of the Province?
« It was supposed to be paid direct to the Provincial
- Gashier. E | - | y

Q. 4And the bank aooount was the dopoaitory for that fund? |

| X} (YOBQ

+ You had nothing to do with that at all?

o No.

- ROSS EXAMINED BY MR. STEWART. |
~ % You eaid a moment ago to Mr, Ralaton that the oity
d nothing to do with the Housing commissionﬂa own a00-
unt ; by that you mean you as treasurer had nothing?
A, Oertainly,

‘Qy Dealing‘with the reserve fund for a moment ; can you
telilme by reiérenoe to the Minute Book of the Trustees
! | | of the reserve and éinking funds, whether there are any

i ‘ . |Minutes authorizing the loaning of the funds, of the res-

erve fund,'tb any speclified or particular yearss
A, These are sinoe 1923 | |
;; But none before that?

.A I could find none before.

You have examined the Minute book.

M
g o

I examined it in Tresponse to Alderman Whitman's letter.

» But‘you could find no Minutes authorizing & loan 1o

pny partioular year?

A o _NOC |

Q. Oan you tell me in what year the loans were mede to the
authorized years as they now. appear.

A, Ao mll this happemad before my time the only way I can
do it ds by,referring to the ledger. |

BY THE MAYOR,

Q. You don*t recall at the time the report was asked for

hether you prepared & detailed report of the investment

of that $68,000 or $65,000¢ 5_

) -



A, Oertainly. (To Mr. Stewart) The question is how
far do you want to go back; this fund originated in 1903

‘and the loans were made from that time on.

‘FY MR. STEWART. |

Q. As it stands at present the earliest year to which
any of the money is loened is 1908.

A. The amount that stands charged against this year is
.$13,090.‘

Q. In what year wes that loan made?

.”r. The loan to 1909 started in April 24, 1911, with a sum
of $20,350. sucoeeded by amother loan on ﬁovemher 31 of
t14,150§'£hax is in 1911 also.

k. On April 19, 1912, a return of $20, 5804 leuvigg on
April 28, 1913, a balence of $13,930,

Q. And it is the same at present or at 1982?

'yf Take the following year.

A, No; on April 3, 1914, a further loan or advance of
$4, 500,

Q. To what year? |

A, To 1909, whioh brought the balance on May 1, 1914,
$18,420; on June 9, cash was returned $3,300; January
15, 1915, each returned $500.; February"17;'oash‘return-
pd, $150; Ootober 23, 1914;'oash returned $1300.; so
that the balos on April 30, 1915, was $13,370.; and amounts
'omxtted May 1, 19% , $180.; and that was oarried forward
$13,090; and on April 26, 1915, cash $406.10; April 39
$2514.10; May 31 $904.83; Ootober 15, $860.; leaving on
the 7th. June, 1916, a balance of $10,419.09, and that
amount on March and.e 1923, was repald to the extent of

$6, 53320,
Q. Take the nexk year that appears as & debtor to the

reserve fund, that is 1910,
A. On December 13, 1912, cesh or advance $4,415.76.

-6_
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Maroh 28, 1924.

gt —

Qk Is that the first date on which any money was loaned
T om the reserve fund to 19107 !

1? That is as it is recorded here.
v That is all the informaticn I want. Give us the date

. whioch the first loan was made from the reserve fund to
the 1810 account?

Ve DOoémber 13, 19123,

» What is the year to whioch a lwan was wade from the

eserve fmnd.

1911,

Whﬁn*wée the first monies leaned to the 1911 acoount? |
Apr8l 18, 1912, $37,288.75,

Was thereammw'subsednent advance?

January 9, 1913, #5,000.

Is that the last?

. Then there were repayments on January 15, 1915, $8500.,
nd February 17th. $1000. o

» What 1s the next year to which loans have been made
rom the Reserve fund?

« Loans have veen mede since 1903.

» The next year after 1911 - were there any in 1912?
. October 33, 1914, to loan §$1,931.

+ That ‘was the first loan to the year 19137

That is the only loan,and.returned on Janﬁary 15th.
Ys there any losn to 19131

August 20, 1915, #1 814,97, and October 15, $350s

F« That is the first 1oan ‘made £rom reaerve fund to 19137
ﬁ Yes, as recorded here.

. Any loan to 19147
Senuary 16, 1916, $11,321.88; February 17, 1,800400.

Any further advances?
Q. On Maroch 38, 1915, 43,430; April 23, $486.10; April

9, $514 10; May 31, $2 164.70; making & total of $1e 535,95,

-1
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Mgroh 28, 1924.

Qs Were any loans made to the year 1915 from the reserve

- Fund?

.ii NO.

That 1s the last loan that was made from the reserve

T’

Yes.,

You were speaking the other night about the various
ank acocounts, and I understood you to say that you have
ne bank account for eaoch year.

I Yes. |
» And that bank aocoount continues so long as you owe
o the bank any part of the borrowings’on acoount of

hat year?

ny taxes to come in; we cannot oclose the year until

hat is done, opnaequently you have to keep the bank

%. No, the bank acoount continues so long as there are

00K,
I think you told us into that bank aooount ge s not
| nly taxes for that year, but also the proceeds of the
ale of all olty securities, of that year, - the abutters
hare, - in fact all moneys that. oome into the olty far
se during that year? |
Exoept water, or trust aocounta.

« The prinoipal revenue I suppose is from taxes?

. Not always.
Except in oases where there is capital borrowing

axes are by far the largest portion?

+ That is it.
E I¢ money oomes in from the sale of seouritles that

paid out for the partiocular purpose for whioch the
eourities were flated, is 1t not?

L I could not eay that . |
£ You have an acoount covering these seourities, each

{tem for which the securities are so;d?
.‘ .




Maroh 28, 1924.

« We oredit eaoh account with the amount that has been

orrowed for it.

b And charge against that accouht all the outgoing
roperly chaigeable to 1t? |

. Yes. |

Q. The reveme or moneys received for that acoount are

Bpecially earmarked and you see to it that these moneys

hre not disbursed, do you not?

ﬁ: Nos |
. You never take care that the amount left in the bank
is suffioient to cover the purposes for which the parf-

iocular seocuritles were issued?

. That would be impossible under the present system.
dk Could ycu'nbt always deduct from the total prooeeds
of the salre of eeourities the total amount you had ex-
‘pended on the partioular account leaving & balance -

cannot you at any moment determine whether that amount is

in the bank or not?

A. Mo

Qs I£ would be possible to do 1t?

A. T can give you an instance of 1t, if you listen to

ot 41f we ocould colleoct 100% of the taxes, every year

on the 30th. of April or lst. of May, or shortly after-
wards, when all the bills againsf the different approrp-

4 otions were pald, I oould then draw a cheque for the bal-
ances that were due to capital unexpenddd accounts; but

i nasmuch as the taxes are never oolle oted 100% and as all
the services have been paid thelr running expenses, 1t
follows that the money mast come from some place. Now,
the onlir place it oan oome from will t from whatever

are to the ocredit of that year in the bank, whether

noneys
from ocaplital gooount, unexpended balamces, or money in

-0
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Moroh 28, 1924,

previous years, borrowed but not used.
Q. Is it not a faot that just to cover the first part
of the year - that is, from May lst. to July lst., say,

the olty invariably borrows from the bank 30% of the
raxes payable for thaf year?

.« Yes.
Q. And that is borrowed for the purpose of defraying
hese very expenses to which you refer?

r. Yes., |
Q. So it is not neoessary for the city to collect 100%
taxes in order to mepet its esthmates, and that all it

leoct in the year - within the financlal year?

A. I will give you an instance.

E# THE M YOR:
o If you had in hand an overdraft of 30%, and things
should so work out that you collect 70% of the total, Ghat

gives you 100% of your requirements - does it not?

. Yes, - 1f you collect 70%.
_ Mr. Stewart assumed you did oollect the 70% and you
had 30% overdraft, you would have all youw estimated re-

quirements.
A. Yess, that would be equivalent to collecting 100%.

Q. Assuming.you have got in 70% and have 30% overdraft,
hat gives you everything it is possible to get.
. If we had 70%.

That is all Mr. Stewart salid.

. RALSTON: I will admit that.

Y MR. STEWART.
E If you collect 70% and got 30b from the bank, and

,$111 you have not collected 100% of the taxes for the

year.

=] Qe

heeds to collect is 70%, is it not? All it needs to ool-
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A, No,

Q. The practice as regards the bank is that the borrowing

is not pald back to the bank until it ocan be pald back
in toto.

A. That is true.

« You don't pay back by instalments?
Lu The bank will not acocept it.

, &. Therefore at the end of any civic financial year we

an expeot to find a oonsiderable balance to the oredit
;f any year, to the oredit of that year?

?. We ocan not.
» Why not?
. Well - . |
. Is 1t because the taxes are not colleoted?
. That is it. '
. Because you have not collected 70%?
pe Yes. |
P. And that 1s the cnly reason?
. That is the only reason.
g, At the end of the following year we might expeot %o
find the previous year with a considerable balance at
oredit owing to colleoticns during the subsequent year,

mi ght we not?

. We would find some.

'Q. In every case you widl find a considerable balance

st the year following the olose of the partioular fin- .

anoial year?

A. No, you might not.

Q. Oan you recollect any cases?

A, Yes, I can give you an instance of 1923-23; the only

sum we have to the oredit of that account is $35,000.,

and when $22,500. was returned to the reserve fund that

had been loaned 1t, and a further subsequent amount that

-11~
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j —

nad been loanéd 1t different years outside the reserve

nd, there would be no balance.

+ When there was pald out of the 1922-23 year the amount

orrowed from the reserve fund and that amounts borrowed

rom other years there would be no balance?

; To make my meaning clear - .
ﬁ Can you answer that?
|

I will give the figures and that is the best answer

can give you: On April 30, 1923, there was $728,315,83
tnoollected according to Price Waterhouse & Co. report,

of the taxes for that year, and cur bank loan agdinst that
was $563,600; the estimates for that year for the differ-
ent services were all pald; and still there was $738,000,
or the difference between $562,000, bank loan, and §728,000
uncollected taxes had been utilised, or must have been
utilized from capital expenditure. There was no other

way to get at 1t. |

Q. What is the standihg to=day of 1923-237

A. On the 22nd. March, whioch is the last éﬁatement I have

made, uncollected taxes ie $513, 537; cash balance $35,958;
total $549,496., against $562;500. that was loaned from
th& bank; a'defioit practically of $13,000. |
Q. And the oash on hand is what?

A.' $35,958.

Q. That is the only instance you ocan recall, is 1t?

A. I heve a whole string of them from 1208 up.

Q. Where a year, after April 30th, of the following year,

there was no amount at the oredit of the yeal.

A, 1909-10 the uncollected taxes according %o Price,
sterhouse & Co. $9,917; and amount collected since that

date $863. (1)

al3-
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March 28, 1934

Q. You are not answering the question; my question is,
take any finanoial year in partiocular, take the bank aoccount
for that year, — has there not been a substantial sum at
the oredit of that year at the expiration of one ysar after
the termination of that year; for instance, when speaking
of 1910, my auestion has reference to the state of the
nocount for 1910 on April 30th. 1911,

.+ Of cwrse -fthat is a statement I have taken from
rice,'Waterhduse's account, and b#ought it upt to date,
Er March 22nd. | |

. That 188 merely a statement of uncollected taxes, 1s
1t not? ‘
Y ﬁHE MAYOR:

w For the &ear 1921-32, oclosing on April 30, 1923,
would iou say that you have an example there of any year
where twelve months after April 30th. at the closing of
that year, we had not colleoted 71% of that year's total
assessment; 1f we oolleoted 1% over the ?0%, inasmuch
be you have retired no portion of the 30% overdraft - that
bnswers the question - have you any example where twelve
months after the oclosing of the financlal year you can
quote an example where there is 30% outstanding; because
1f there is & fracﬁion over 70% collected Mr. Stewart's
question is answered; where 31% remains still uncolleoted?
A. There is no example here; all I can give you is the

amount of taxes Price Waterhouse shows on the 30th. April

1923, |
Q. On an average we get around the discount date approx-

imately 50% of the taxes, roughly?

A, Yes.

Q. Disregard the July discount date and the entire balance

and go ahead twelve months, April

of that finanoclal year,
30, 1923, to April 30, 1933, and say whether or not 1% in
-1 |
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Txoess of our requirements and 30% overdraft has not

ome in; I oannot recall anything I have ever seen that

ould bear out that situation; rémember, 1f you were
1sbussing the end of the financial year itself that might
6 possible, because today with only a ocouple of months to
go we have 60%, approximately 60% in, and 40% outstanding,
“and overdraft of 30%, whioh leaves us with 10% notwithstand-
ng your overdraft to take oare of; we still require
$180, 000, to oomplete the balance of this year. Notwith-

standing our full 30% overdraft and the collection of 80%
pf the taxes. |

« According to my statement, instead of $180,000. that
e require to complete our work to the 30th. April this
ear, 1t is $352,000, |
+ It would be one-twelfth of your total assessment rough-
Ve
. Our total is $2,044,000.
\. It would be 60 1h, plué 30, leaves 10% of the total of
cur gross reqﬁiréments; we know there is $800,000. out-
tanding today, which is approximately 40% of the total;
you have 30 from the bank, plus 60 in, leaves a difference
of 10; does it not? |

A. That way of figuring 18 not socording to my mind the

‘exact ways
E@ In @ general way, we have 80% of the total colleotions,

and you have received from the bank 30% of the total, no
mdtter what way you take 1t jrou have 90% of the gross, whioch

leaves 10% that you have not in your nand or the power %o
kot |

k. To come down to brass tacks, acoording to my idea, 1t
ig this: We have $852,933. of an uncollected balance of
taxes for this year; we have $5,447.69 in the bank at the

kime the statement is made up, to our oredit in the Royal

-%4-
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Bank, which gives a total of $858,371.68; against which

e have borrowed from the bank $605,880,; s0 that in order

o carry on to the 30th. April, irrespective of the 30% we

ave from the bank, we want $358,420. odd dollars.

?‘5. Our total assessment was something in the neighbourhood
f $1,875,000.

. $2,044,000. taking in the Highway Tex.

e And'f,ha.t is exactly 10%?

« It is nearer 13, |

« The answer Mr, Stewart wante is, can you clte any

example where 12 months after the olosing of any finanocial

year you have not 71% of your gross taxes in?

ALDERMAN DAW. I think that seems to be a very simple

question to answer.

THE MAYOR. I think it should ought to be.

A. You oan take any year you wish, 1921, 1930, 1919, 1918
and you will £ind anywhere from $519, 000. down to $83,000.
of uncollected taxes to-day. Well, then, if these taxes
B,T'6 unoollected for these years, ard we mveé pald the runn-
ing expenses of the oity according to our estimates for
those years, then we must have pald those running expenses

oﬁt of caplital account.

Qs Or ut of the amount you borrowed from the bank.

A. This is exclusive of the amount borrowed £from the bank.
. In what year is there over $500, 000 uncollected taxes
i n addition to the borrowing fram the bank for that year?
| Tuke 1920-21, the total amount of uncollected taxes at

regent date is §186,157.11; we have to our oredit

4

the p

$311,361, ‘ ‘
owe the Bank $450.00 cut of that; the balance $47,000. is

37, which makes the sum total $497, 417.48; and we

not to my mind texes; 14t is an amount due capital and an

-l]lDe
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amount that we ocannot pay over to capital until we get that

$186,000 in of ucollected taxes.

. Knd‘you borrowed that capltal from the year 19230-31.
It may be 1820-31, 1918-30, it might be 1919918.

e

Carried along as unexpended balances?

Yes,

To go back to the original question, there ies no case
that you know of where the taxes for any year remained un-

solleoted to the extent of 30% one year after the close of

that year.

. RALSTON., I submit we will have to have the acoounts

nd figure out if it is 30%; somebody must figure out if
‘t 15 300/00 |

A, All I have on the statement is unexpended tax collect-

lons according to Price, Waterhouse's account.

BY MR, STEWART.

Q. Those are not your own figures?

I uhderatood you to say to Col. Ralston on Monday
ight, that into the year's account goes the reoetpte from
rmanent pavement abutters?

Since that date they are; I have brought it up to date.
e
Yes.

Whét becomes of that money?

After a oertain period when it reaches the amcunt of -

ny oonsiderable amount - either six months or may be
welve months, that amount is paid into the bank to the .

redit of the permenent pavement aooount that we borrowed

rom the bank; the same is true of the sidewalks and curbs

L 4 gutters, and street gradings.
# How regularly are these payments made into the separate

16—
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pank acoocunts.

« I would éay irregularly.
Q. Is there any partioular amount to be on hand befars it
Lé pald into the other account?

« No - a question of expedienoy.
ﬁb, When the partioular bank account requires the deposit
Effurther sums you transfer them from the general account

A. No, beocause we borrow the amount for the pavement abut-

o that particular acocount?

ters from the bank; we open an account showing how much
money we borrow from the bank, and also an acoount at the
Roydl Bank showing the amount; we oredit the abutters' aco-
ount as tﬁe moneys are colleoted by the City Collector,

end when we pay over any amount to the Royal Bank, then we

charge the Royal Bank.

. It is really a repayment of the amount of their loan?

. Yes.

» These are pald back within the year?

Since I have taken them over they have been.

» Take the item Taxes 1n Arrears, that goes into each

ear's aocount, what becomes of that fund?

. We open an acoount oalled Interest on Rates; we ocharge
p agéinst that acocount the discounts that are allowed for
axes pald up to the 3lst. July; it may amount to any-
here, acoording to the estimate, from eighteen to twenty
thousand. Frbm the first of July to the thirtieth of Sept-
mber no interest is oharged on taxes; after that date
nterest at the rate of 8% is oharged until this year when
% was oharged, and that money is returned by the collsct or

to me with the other rates an@ taxes and goes to the oredit

Lf that interest acoount.
A geparate bank aocoount?

A, Ro.
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Q. What beoomes of it ultimately?

A. It is in the year's acoounts and forms part of the un-

Txpended balances, 1f any; it is adverse for the first 1%

rears, after that the 2% disoount is generally wiped out

d 1t shows on the other side.

.

And the difference between the rat@ of interest you

eoeive from the Royal Bank and the rate you pay the Royal,

s that paid out of this partioular account?

whﬁoh the bank interest is oredited or charged as the
ase may Ye; beocause in the first part of the year when we
ave the 30% and when we have the taxes colleotable until

t No. We have what is ocalled a ourrent interest account,
{he 3lst. July, we generally have a surplus and that goes

o the oredit of interest until it is wiped out.
» I understood you to say the other night that the oity

as always paid the bank in part out of the revenues of an-

ﬁther year.
i. What I say is, that the olty has to pay the bank wher-

ver 1t can get the noney to wipe off the account; the

uwle that was in operation with the bank is this: 1f I

ave to go to the bank to borrow 30% for the inooming years
' axeé, the oonéideration on which that was given was to the
ffeot I had to'wipe out the oldest year; as the taxes were:
ot collectable, or not colleoted frequently for that year,
the money had to be borrowed from some other year, and the
ay that was borrowed would be gomething in this positioni

n 1919-30 there were uncollected taxes of $135,981.35; we

ad a oredit in the bank of $165,174. whioh made our total
Lf $393,139, against whioh we owed the Bank $350,000; 41t
&as therefore ocmeidered that the difference, the $43,000.,
i

oo

as the oity's money, and as long as the bank was protect-
d to the extent of their amount, we felt at liberty to

that money to vay off the last year's taxes %0 get our
-18- |
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accomodation for the ensuing year.

9;' I don't think that was the question I asked., Was the

only necesskty the fact that the bank was pressing you to
o this? - | |

. The rule was that we had to wipe off -
« What rule was this? Who pramulgated that rule?

« Ifound it to be the'oustom when I came into the treas-

rer's'offioe.

» HNas the Bank ever notified the city of any such arr-

hngement or stipulation?

A, The bank has told me they expected to have one year
iped off before we borrowed another.

. That has not'been the oustom in the past; don't you
oday owe the bank for four years?

« For five ysars.

» So the rule has been more honoured by breach than by

bservance?
. N’Oo
+ You told us the rule was you had to wipe out one year

before you could borrow the next.

MR,RALSTON. He sald another.

A, I want to say this - .

ﬁm Are you aware of the bank having stipulatéd for that
with the olty, or is thié a private insistence by the bank
manager when dealing with you?

A. I would not say it was a private insistence with the
hanager, beoause when I went to negotiate the money the
question was, "are Jou golng to pay off one year?"'

Q. Did he say I wont loan you more monoy unless you do?

. He didn't say 1%, but the inference was plaln.
. Do you think 1t was plain that they would refuse if

ou did'ntl
-19-
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A, It was to me.

'g. I feel I must press you on that because I understand it
18 not the bank's attitude at all; you can state positively
that the bank manager never refused a loan except on those

terms?

A, Because there was no ococasion; we always met him that

ay; these returns were always submitted to him,

v And you eimply paid him in anticipation of'his~refusal.
« No, beéause the question was put straighty are you.
olng to vay off the last year. |

» And you always said, yes.

. Oertainly.o

v You were aware of the fact that you were using moneys
tanding to the oredit of cne year for purposes other than
he purposes of that year in so doing?

« I have given you an answer to that in the early part

f the evening, I think. If the taxes for eaoh year, in-
luding the 30% -

» That is not tﬁe answer to my cquestion -
R. RALBTON. Let him finish,

. Oonfine yourself to answering questions and we will

et along more rapidly.

. RALSTON. He is entitled to give an explanation if he

kes to 4o so.

HE MAYOR. I personally do not think the answer of the
1ty Treasurer is the answer to the question thht was pub

0 hinm.

. When you took a cheque to the mayor to sign in order to

pay the bank, did you explain to the mayor that moneys were

boing dravn from the account of one year to pay ah indebted-

P20




March 28, 1924.
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ness ultimetely'payable out of the account of enother

‘.'vear?

| *_qoare a etatement ‘showing the diepoeition of the unpaid‘

g A, 1I asked you to let me meke an explanation and you don't

) geem to want me to do it.

Q I want you te make erery explanation, but answer the
 1ueet1on first and then give the explanation. -

. f Whenever we went to get the mayor to sign theee cheqnee;{
an explanetion wae made %o him of what it was prOpoeed to T
 Hey” gome times the,wuditor would,go:with me, or else on

| other*oeeaeione he would sign the etatement; we hed to pre-

';n’baxee, eeeh on- hand and what we proposed to do; we had to
" eatiefy the bank manager that the moneys that we were tak- f
gﬁng from theee aooounts in order to apply them to these

 other yeare did.not belong to the taxes of that year, that

there were enough,uncolleoted taxee and cash kn bank to

rarrant us taking that money.

And these aoccunte were explained to the Meyor?

k. .'nheee e,ooo.mte were expla.ined to the mayor.

,'Or Jjust put before him and aek him to sign the ohequee?
 They were put before him,‘ had to take the same
 ptatement as we showedto thelmayor to the bank manager.

! . Yoe,went ihto it a great deai'mpre carefully with the
ank manegerQ | |

‘. Not a bit,

fﬁ Did you know yourself that moneys to the oredit of one

‘

ear were being avplied to the payment of an amount borr ow-
4 from the bank for another? Mcneys to the oredit of one
oar were being used to pay off a loan made by the bank ag-

inst the taxes of another year.

That 1nvolvee a question that is more or less intriocate:;

n this way, we might - we will take the acoount of 1918- 18;

e had to pay that amount off; we had so mich eaeh on hand
-21= |
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%o much unoolleoted~taxes; and we had to make up the
éifference between what we borrowed from the bank and the
éaéh on hand. Now, that year may have owed the year that
%e were borrowing from probably twice the amount we were
?aking from it; you will see by the statements in the ann-
éal report, due 1918-19 $150,000., due by 1919-30 $200,000. ;
és I stated in the early part of the evening, if I -

%f the taxes were oollected and I ooculd balance the year

ét the end of the period I would be able to draw a chegue

g |
against any one year's account and withdraw the unexpended

oapita.]m but 1f I cannot do that I have to carry the bal-

ance to the next year and make an entry in my book showing

}919 awed 1918 the amount that 1t 1s short.
Q} When was the first time in your experience that the

!

§ooount of any one year owed money to the account of more

%han one other year.

An I have here a statement prepared by the late Treasurer

g up to April 30, 1816, I find 1910 that 1911 owed 1910 1
| #13 526. I find in 1911 account that there waé due by ?
1910a11. $13,000,, and 1913 acoount was owing $30,314. D fa
tind in 1912=13 account that there was due by 1911~12

$39,ooo, and there was due 1913-14, $54,000,; I find in

w'_..._,_—._m e

1913-14 acoount that there was due by the Health Board

T e et e e

| éooount $13,724, by 1812 acoount $94, 000., and.due by

i 1914-15 $154,503, I find 1914-15 - that 1915-18 account
owed 1914-15 3143‘719. They owed the Water Department

| 310 000.; reserve fund $16,000.; and I find that 1913-14
| owed $154,503. and so0 on,(it goes right up to the preeent J

timo each year involved in the next year.

Q; But is there not a very great difference in the last o

tﬁree or four years; 1t ks not a fact that each year {

o@ed‘the previous yesr and was the oreditor to the subseq-

t ar?
uent ye s
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A. It is the same now.

. How wae the bank account of 1920 pald off, by borrow-

%

ing from what source?

éu It has not been paid off at all.

Q. 1917-187

é. It has been pald off.

é. How?

|

%. It was pald off -

é. Out of what year's moneys - aoccounts?

é, It was pald off out of the 1915 account $16,000.;

1919 $74 500; 1930 $44,500.

9. So in tham partioular instance 1917-18 owes three:
Years? Something to 1918=19, 1919-20 and 1930-31?

A Yoo, | ' 1

é; That is very different, is it not, from the years
&9 0, 1911, 1913, that you were referring to, that each
&ear rad & slight overhang into the next; here is one
aooount that owes each of three subsequent years large
gums of money?

é. Yes.

95 Whon did that state of affalrs ocome about, and that
19 all my question was originally aimed atj when did the
practioe gr ow up whereby any year owed funds t0 two or

hore other years? Not one year a 1ittle overhanging bal-

S

anoe.
A. I give you 1916-17; there were transfers from 1920

aooount $49,633,, and from 1908-1908 to 1915 $84,000.

ﬁ@ That ig the first year 8o for as you know where there

were porrowings from years other than the one immediately

;preoed.ing or irmediately followd ng?

A. No, because there were other borrowinga during the
;year, from these acoounts that had any oredit balance to

tide over finanoial difficulties al the time.

-23-
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Qh 19168=17 is the only year in whioch any year ending up
a debtor year to two or more other yeara?

|

A, If you lock up the annual reparts you will see where

| N |
these things are credited to thebe different years where

; %hey were borrowed and were not returned probably a year
or two years afterwards.
| e
Q. Pria to 19167

) |

A. Prior to 1916.

| |

ﬁ, Which year for example?

A. I have here a oopy of 1913-14, there was a balance

transferred from 1913“ in 1914-15 I find a balanoce trans-

N st ot NS L T

ferred from 1913; mnd in 1915-16 I find a balance trans-
fsrred from 1912-13.

i

Q. That is in 1915-18 was the first year that borrowed

%rom a year other than the succeeding year.
é. No, you must remember this, that we are talking now -

ﬁhe entries you are talking about are in reference to the

end of the year when we had to make & new borrowing from
|

e A e L £ e e e g
= T ey T T R - ,

the bank and had to retire the old year, or the oldest

oo g e
e TN

year, the year furthest back. But there were some borrowings
had to be made during the year the same as today, transferr-
1ng money from the reserve fund thts year; the only differ—

enoe vetween the two was - it was done always with the sanc-
!

tion of the mayor.

QL What do you mean by the sanotion of the mayor; you

|
;

merely obtained his signature %o the cheque?

A. And his oomsent to doing that.
é; Am I to understand no borrowing was ever made from any
&ear without the consent of the mayor for that year.

A. Most emphatiocally, with the full knowledge of the olr-

cumstances. ;

Q. And the same is true of Mayor Murphyt

A, The same is true with Mayor Murphy. it

-24~
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BY THE MAYOR.

Qy When you presented to me a year ago two or more oheques,
ﬁerhaps“one cheque, and asked me to sign it, did I sign 1%
%or these transfers, or did I decline?

A.“ You didn't sign it last year.

9; I declined and'said I would not be a party to any such
#anipulation?

é. You did.

é; During the first year - my first year as maybr, per-
#aps within two weeks of my taking office - the daye 15'

i i S e L AU ’

éasily get-at-able from your reoords, you came to me with
;heques for a certain large amount running into a consid-
érable amoﬁnt;'you and I have discussed it, have we not,

;nd I stated my recollection of the incident was that you
;old me this is the usual practice in signing these ocheq-

- e et it
g o A R IR

hes; 4f I am not mistaken they must have run verhaps in
the neighborhood of $300,000. or more, one amount was

$135 000, |
h, I may set you right on that at onoce: the amount that Q

%e‘have veen speaking about, and that all the talk is

about ig the one you have reference to, the cne wherein

the three years was taken. : v

_ 9& Let me ask you one question, whioch will permit of only
%ne answer: in order to put you in a positioh to explaln
%b the mayor and make olear to your bank Jjust what this

cheqpe involved you would have your self to know the various

aouroee from whioch you would make up, whether from one or

hore years?
h. Absolutely. |
b; And you would have %o have personal knowledge as 0

aust the partioular sources that you would have to tap

%o make up the amount to take ocare of that year you are

265~
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|
?ndeavouring to clear up; otherwise you ocould not explain

?.t to the mayor or go to the hank to make it olear; you

could not explain to the mayor because you would bring in
sllp showing how the amount was being made up and where

The transfers were being taken from.

A, If you will allow me five minutes I will bring up the
|

ori ginal doouments. | '

C:l;; It wont be neocessary; before you could draw a cheque

%you would versomally have to know the source from whioh

!Fhe moneys were to oome?

tA. "True.,

fo_. That is the direct question Mr. Stewart vut to yow

ias to whether you yourself would know how the make up of
;iohe cheque was arrived at and what ohannels you proposed
%1'.0 get money from; that is the question you were asked.

A. I oan show the original document at once.
| |

Q. The question is, you would have yourself - you would

:{:equire to have personal knowledge before you oould draw

cheque and explain to the mayor how you were making 1t

p?

. Yes.

[ b..._,ﬂ ﬁ_,w g —

Q. This is all that is necessary. i
. .

}

b.z. What doouments did you have showing the disposl tion o

{:he regerve fund, the years to which the fund wae loaned?

« Only the sinking fund ledger.
. And the sinking fund Minute Book?

__0 S >~.

A. No, I have aiready answered that there is nothing in

the Minute Book in regard to these loans.

Q. You had no dooumentary security covering the loans?
A. None were ever handed to me and as far as I know

none are in existence. o8-
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@3' I find on pages 33 and 34 of the Annual Report for
i914—15 a statement of sinking funds; we £find in 1914—15
theamount of the reserve fund was how much?

{\ . $85,378.50.

Q, If you turn to the following rge you will find what
Esta‘cement made at the top of the page?

h.- The seourities of our sinking, reserve and other funds
gre in the ocustody of our treasurer and by him kept in the
vaulte of the Royal Bank. |

Q. That is part of the oity suditor's report for that

@. Yeos,

bﬁ Were there any securities in your ocustody covering the
ieserve fund whioh were on deposit in the bank?

?, There are no securities in the reserve fund and never
have been. |

Q; In the year 1914-15 did you make any report as to the
?eserve fund?

h. Yes.

Q. Look up the year 1917-18.

@, It seems to have been amitted or was not oopiled from
riny O0pY .

6@ I place in your hands - 1915 16 was your first report?
A, 1917-18.

Q@ That is the one in your hands?

A. Yes.

Q. I puxvin your hands the remaining four reports.-

&R. RALSTON., I understand my karned Friéﬁd‘ia endeavour-
1ng to have Mr. Hopewell go over this book and show the re-
serve fund is not there; if my 1earned Friend has locked
and 1% isnot there, I will admit 1t; he says he has

100k3d0

. N

e




MR. STEWART. My learned Friend: must not make arguments
}n the course of my examination.

;3 In the year 1911-12 - I pass you the treasurer's report
|

on 1910=11 and on page 95 you will find the way the reserve
fund 1s dealt with in the old reports.

#.' You will find in 1918-19 under the auditorts statement
of the reserve fund - |

QL I am asking in your report.

‘#u Ag I have sald before, it was neveg altered from the
?ime I came in until 1922-233.

-é@ In the auditor's report it is only the total amount

%nd not the years to whioch it is loaned, in the auditor's

report of 1918-19.

.
R i SO T - [P o e -

A, It was the gross amount which is the same amount as 1915

!

Q. As a m tter of faot, the items making up the loans to the

various years out of the reserve fund have not appeared in

%he annuad report since 1914-15, or since you beocame treasur- |

er?

A. I oould not say off hand now. | : ;
Q. It is to verify that I place the books in y®ur hands. |
;
|

MR. RALSTPN., If my learned Friend says he looked and

%héﬂa afe not there, I admit 1it. | §
L |
MR, STEWART. I will say I looked and ooculd not find them.

hn, RALSTON: I take my learned Friend's statement; I don't

bropose-to look.

da I think you mentioned to Col. Ralston the st evening

i
i

we met that a practide had grown up that where the market

waa not suitable for the sale of bonds for any specifio
pumpoee you used the regular account for funding the oblig-
ations temporarily, for dedraying the obligations temp or-

arily?

-28-
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A. At the Tequest of the higher offioials.
Q. Is it not a fact that all these bonds are authorized
ﬁy special legislation?

;A- Yes.

Q. And that the amount of the borrowings on these bonds

!

§‘csan be borrowed from the bank upon deposit of the seour-

!
|

ities until the time for sale arrives?

A.' That authority was granted in the time of Mr. John
McKeen, of the Board of Oontrol - about 1916-17.

b} And since that time you have borrowed in antiocipation
?f the sale of the bonds.

A;' We have.

Q- On every ooccasion as far as you recollect?

}. Not on every occasion; it altogether depends on the
?tate of the finanoces, these loans are:gnerally suUppoOs -

Bd to be placed on the market arocund May or June; abaut

tha’c time we have the 30% of the taxes in; the big amount

of the taxes are in, and we generally have anywhere from

§750,000. to $1,000,000. to the oredit; they want a ocertain
ﬁmdtnx\of money; the market is oonsidered by the finanocial

'oxperte a8 not being in a good position to make our borrow-

1ngs, we have that money in the bank, on whioh we are de-

riving interest at 4%b; ¥f we were to go to the bank to bor-

row, we will assume we wanted $400,000., if we were %o go
to the bank and ask them to 1end us $400,000. they would
probably ocharge ue 6%; 1f we put $hat money into ocurrent

'aooount until it was used the bank would allow us 4% and we

would be losing 2%, and rather thak borrow money, having

auoh ) 1arge oredit as we would have in the bank, I would

be told there was no necessity to float the bonds until lat-

er in the year and to use our funds in the meantime.

Qs The current acoount was never orippled by defraying

-39~
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capi tal expenditures out of current acoount temporarily?

A ‘Never orippled, because when the bank account was get—'

ting dangerously low then @he loans would be made.

Q. Or eeourities marketed?

to Yes.
o }t,wwaa @n;y when thére was lots of money'in the acc-

punt  you defrayed oap;tal expendituree'temporarily out of

the eurrent'aooount?‘

. Yes.
'So that didn?t ocause any hardehip to the year's aco-

unt.

» No, it was an advantage to ite

I suppose there was no ocase in whioch oapital expendit-

- ure. wae made in antiocipation of the gale of bonds or ant-

1oipation of a pledge of the bonde, that the bonds wers not

narketed or ‘the loan made againet theee bonds within the

finanoial year, the securities were alwaye marketed or the

loan was made against them by the bank wi‘ohin the financial ye

5
H

' brear, ' the seocurities were alwaye merkeded .o r the loan was i

made against them by the bank Within the finanoial year that

the oapital expenditures were made?

[

A, ‘Not alwayse
Oan yo8 give us an 1netanoe?

ﬁ.' You can go back to the time the oounoil -
Q. ‘Sinoe we got the privilege in'1916917.

MR. RALSTON. Let him answer.

Q. I am regtrioting it so that it will not be 1rretevent

entirely; sinoce 1916-17.
can go back untll the ocounoil rebelled and walked

A o You

out and left the Board of Gontrol in oharge, 1918-19, I

think. In that yea
Oontrol could not, as I understand it,

r they had no council and the Board of
oould not legally
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borrow any money; they had heavy contracts in operation,

one with the Cook Construotion Co., completing the North

ost Arm sewer; the oonsequence was the Board of Control, I

wont say alered, but carried on the work and the money

ad to be financed and we wound up that year®s accounts by
defiéit of $101,000, 1f I remember, in the sewer account.
. That was owing to the extracrdinary condition that
rose when the council was on strike?

e YO8,

. That is the .only year you can think of in which the
boourities were not marketed or the loan made against the

beourities within the ourrent year in which the capital

xpenditures were made?

. I cannot just recall any other at the present moment
ut I think theré was e

, You cannot recall any?

« I am almost sure there were.

. Identify the various annual reports from 191011 to

date.

. RALSTON. I admit those.

Y MR, RALSTON.
« Was there any method of earmarking moneys in this gen-

ral yearly account?

'None whetever except the state of the accounts as rec-

rded in the ledgeT.
. You could not say certain balances remaining at your

sredit in the bank today say for $100,000. was taxes or

sapital on bonds or abutters payments or any other certalin

amounte?

. You oould not. |
ﬁ, And there was no method whereby that was done; the only

3]
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thing is you kept this hodge podge acoount and kept the

ledger showing how much of that amount belonged to each

lof these 1tems.

A, Yes.

Q. You were asked with regard to whether after the end

of a ocurrent year there was ever an occasion when more
than 30% of the taxes remained uncollected, and it was
suggested that was an easy question to answer; you have

to take the total amount of uncollected taxes and the total

Fesessed for the year and estimate the percentage the one
bears to the other?
E That is the only correot way to'do 1t.

Take 1922-33, that you were referring to; what was
he total amount of taxes estimated or assessed?
"I have not got it here.
r 192031, |
| E I have none of those years; the estimated taxes for

920-31 was $1,483.605.
What was uncollected on April 30, 1822, a year after?

eport until April 30, 1923.

Thia statement I have is taken from Price Waterhouse'ls
You have no statement for 19337

ears after.

THE MAYOR.

On that date the amount was $334,158., nearly three
Y
It is exaotly two years after the closing of the fin-

noial year.

Yos.
Out of $1,483,6057
k Yes, nearly 17%0

EY MR. RALSTON.

- What was the balance of uncollected taxes on April 30,
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1933, of the 1923-33 taxes?
é. $853,923.94,
Qb What is the balance of taxes uncollected for the year
1932_z§ on April 30, 1833 (2)
4. $728, 515,83,

Q, Have yoﬁ anything from whioh you ocan give the total

|
taxes estimated for that year?

é} No; speaking from memory, $§1,971,000.
9) Speaking from your knowledge of mental arithmetio, ;
would you say that was more than 30%?

A. That is over 40%. |

é; You told ue that your practice was when transfers were
%o be made from one year to another for the purpose of re-~
éaying bank"borrowings that you want to/the mayor with a
?tatement?

A. Yes., o

Q. What particulars did that statement show?

;1 Thet statement gave the amount of uncollected taxes, |
;mount of highway taxes uncollected, the amount of interest |
that remained unbalanced.

Q; A1l for the ourrent year?

@Q For the year that we would be going to pay off; and I
the amount of cash in bank to our oredit for that year, ;
and 1f that balance showed we had say $500,000. assets
and we owed the bank $450, 000, that $50,000, represented
oapital, unexpended oapital that belongad either to the
;revioue year or the next year, or 1t might be to two or
;hree years. A

Q, Because it might have been horroved from some other |

year before taxes Werse collected?

A, Yes s
. Q, And that was ghown in the statement?

A, Yes. -3 R
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Q; Was there also shown in the.statement the finanocial
Qondition of the year from which you proposed to borrow?
A, On, yes.

Q.» So the mayor had before him the full statement of
the financial condition of the year which needed money

" and also the finanoial condition of the year from which
borrowings were proposed to be made?

A. Yos.

Q\ Hiwe you any cheques showing these borrowings, amounts
,tfansféfréd to these borrowings?

A. I was not asked to look for any.

Q. Were you asked to loock for any cheques showing trans-
férs frog one year to another?

A. I was asked to lock for reserve fund cheques.

Q; Were you asked to look for cheques showing transfers
from one year to another.

A, No."

Qs Have you any reserve fund oheques?

A. Yee; both dated April 3, 1914, two cheques, $5,500.
payable to the reserve fund out of the 1908 acoount ;
éigned py the treasurer, Mr. Brown, and ocuntersigned by
%he Mayor F. P, Bligh, (Ef8); another cne dated April 3,
1914, for $3,300. out of the 1907 acomunt signed by Mr.
Bro&n, the treasurer, and it appears to be signed by the

then mayor, now Mr. Justice Ohigholm, but that ks marked

out gnd F. B, Bligh's name appears. (E/10)
| Q. Is that the time the change would be taking place?

A-. YBB. : . )

BY THE MAYOR.a
Q\ Would it not be necessary in that instanoce to hold

Mr. Bligh oould not sign a cheque if he

the cheque over;
ame into offioe on the 28th. April.

~B4-
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.
BY MR, RALSTON

Q There 1z some explanation on both signatures.

. THE MAYOR # The maen who succeeded Mayor Chisholm

; Lould not have signed that oheque on April Yth
perhaps 1t 1is the deputy Mayor, |

%Q. And another ocheque dated November 21, 1921, out of
%the 1907 account, signed by Mr.Brown, $5,900, counter-
isigned by the then meyor, now Mr.Justice Ohisho}m (E/11)
payable to the reserve fund. Cheque dated June 9th, 1914
out of the 1908 aoccount for $1,000 signed by Mr,

éBrown, the treasurer, payable to the reserve fund, and
%oounxersigned by Mayor Bligh (E/1B) also cheque dated
June 9th, 1914, $800. payable out of the 1907 account,
payable %o the reserve fund, countersigned F.P.Bligh
(E/13) would these chegues be deposited into the reserve
éfuﬁd aocoount or go to any 6ther year? |

%A. The Procedure that was adopted as far as I ocould see
éin looking over the accounts, they passed immedlately %o
Zthe socount that was oolleted: there were only book en-
étries» ,

§Q. The oheaque was deposited directly to the year that
xwas going to borrow that money aegaln out of the reserve
%fund, you refer to the sinking fund, ledger, Page 56,
éahowing these entries; take the one example, 1911, ‘chequ
%out of 1907 $5,900 wpuld not be deposited in the Te-
éserve fund and then loaned by that to another yeer, bul
%go direct?

A. To save drawlng oheques.

;Q. But an entry would appear in the books showing the

course the cheque took?

Ao YGB'.

;Q. A guestion was asked by Mr.Stewart, whether or not you

‘xmaWw that cheques were being drawn agalnet varlous years
vother than the year in connection with which the loan

was desired for the purpose of repaying the bank loans:

=35
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Were cheques being drawn from the funds of another years

xfor the purpose of peying the bank loan in the partioular
tyear which you wanted to fix up, fundes from Capital?

k. I knew funds from Capital were because it ocould not be
otherwise because the taxes were not colleoted.

Qe Dld you know cheques were being drawn against accounts

of other years for the purpose of repaylng bank loans of

gnother year you were endeavouring to finance?

b. Certainly. |

é. That wes part of the system you followed when you made
@p this statement to go to the Mayor?

h. That 1s the ohly way it might be done,

;. Alwayse

A
é. And you explained to the mayor that was the object?
A
Q

. Weas there any secrecy?

Not that I know ¢f; i1t was done open and above board,

Q. And everybody was fully informed?

A, The Mayor for the time and the auditor and myself.

d. Was it fully explained in this statement end in the

interviews that the funds of these years which were being

drawn on were belng used for the purposs of repaying bank

ﬁoans of other years?

K. Oertainly.,

i
¢
i




CROSS EXAMINATION-MR . HOPEWELL

A&yu;g Mr ,Hopewell in reply to a questlion asked by
Golonel Ralston you steted that yourself the Clty
ﬁuditor and the Mayor, would know of all the oclrcumstances
éurrounding the proposed withdrawal of these moneys to

be applied to that particular hack year. Do you recall
whether on both oooasions you came to me the Bity Audlitor

was there,present?

ﬂA. The Oity Auditor wae present on the only one aocaglon

i
i

‘that 1 went to you to get the money transferred in order

t0 pay off the back year.

Qe The only one occasion? Do you say you only came to
%me on one occasion for that purpose? |

%A. I only camé to you on oné occaslon to ask you to sign
icheques to release & year's loan,

;Q. Whet was the purpose of last year's cheques- the
transfer that you proposed last year, on the strength of

my refusal meking it necessary to clean up this emergenoy

money of the Finanoe Oommittee~ was that purely independ
%ent of the previous one?

on NOO

%Q. On one ocoasion that you came to me the Oity Auditor
gwas present, and on that other ooccaslon the Olty Auditor

was not present?

%A. The City Auditor was not present, but the statement
‘that was submltted to you was signed by the Olty Audivor
Zand pertified as correct.

?Q. Yes,- Did I understand you, Mr,Hopewell, %o make this
purther definite statement, thet you knew end that you
iwould have made olear to eny Mayor that the moneys 80

édrawn were out of oapital account?
plat ie your statement?

Q
A That is my statement.
Q

. "'l"‘
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Q. The aocount would be in such condition, upon whioch
§ou would meke the withdrawel, that there could not be
anything but capltal account in it- Is that your reply?
There oould be no oredit to the balance of any year from
Whioh you made e trensfer other than out of Capltel
aooount~ other than the moneys of the oapltal aocount?
%. That can be made oclear to the world and to you 1f

you allow me to go down and bring up the Statementba
Q. I am slmply dealing with the direct question

énd answer that you geve to Ool. Ralston. Col Raleton
@sked &ou whether or not the moneys so transferred for

e
any year or years were from capltal account., Your answer

is yes?

A. My answer is veg, ILf you mean that thers would not be
any other ourrent year moneys to the oredit of the partu
1ou1ar yeer from whlch you made the withdrawsl, that 1s
the only money that oould be there.

BY MR, STEWART

fQ. On every occaslon that these transfers were made from
pne year for the purpose of another year's acocount the
évouoher for the transfers was ocertiflied by the Audltor

W&S 1t not? = the transfer was certified as being correct?
A, The transfer wus certified a&s being. oorreot.

Q. Was the transaction certified in any way by the Auditor?
EA. The transactlion was‘oertified,'yes.
Q. How?

iA. By his neme- he oertified it as correcte.

iQ And it was in that form when presented to.the Meyor
éAnd to the Bank Manager?
%A. Yos, |
iQ And there were no exceptions to thatl
%A No, I don't know of any,
Q. I think you told Col, Ralston that having found 3
ioertain balance in any vear's account you oould not tell
?whether that balsnce was capital or taxes, or whatb it‘waq?
'A. I did note

-0
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Qv You did not say that?
@. I do not think it,

Q. Dild you say la answer to that questlon that you could

never tell at any given time how much was capital and how

moh was taxes?
A, If the loans were not ear-marked and I did not have the

detalls of the withdrawals I could not§

8. I don't know just where the suggestion came from but

there was the suggestion that there was a hodge-podge
| |
account—~ you had complete records in your booke- in your

|

fwn books, which would show the unexpended amount of
every capltal apprdbriation?

‘Ao YGS.

Q' From which you oould find out the amount of uncolleoted
taxes or unpaid texes? .

A. Certainly.

Q. And you ocould find very readily, could you not,

what was taxes end what was capital?

A, In fhat way, V88

§Q. From your own books?
A, Yes, emcept towards the end of the ysar when the

g .:»7:’_’?:1

appropristions for the different committecs were belng ik

ekpended.

Qe Exeroised you mean?

A Yes,— then you would find thet thema was no money in
gthe bank, that there was & certein amount of taxes un-

'oolleoted, whioh more than ecceeded the amount of money

‘that we hed.
3Q That would only be at the end. of the year?

A, At the end of the years,
4. And thet would not exist after the explration of inelve

months from the end of the year?— that state of affairs
iwould a0t exist because there would be enough taxes come

Eiin during the intervening twelve monthe to have a surplus

'énough to make a substantial deposit?

H3_,
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A. There might note. |

Q I think the loan you referred to was $35,000.%

A. Yeg, but I did not say, or rather I did say that
that there were accounts that ocame in that might wipe
that out, |

Qs At any time you oould ascertain Mr,Hopewell, the

amount expended agalnst ocepltal aooount?
A. Yes.

Q. And elso the amount expended as ageinst the estimates

or ourrent account by adding up the different committees!

etatements?
A, Yes,
Q. There would be no mystery about it?

A, No mystery about it whatevers
Qs It is a simple enough problem?

A. Yos, |

Q. And the ocapital acocount would be very often confined
to three or four or half a dozen ltems inone year?

A.'In one year the.bapitalaooount might take in sewers,
pavements, pavement abutters, sidewalke, sidewalk abutters,
ourbs , and 8o on right throughs

Q. How many more- altogether?

A, Thils woﬁld be what you @ll capltal account we were

&unning— in addition to that sume of money had been
%orrowed for speoifio'purposes- gsome of which were not
carried out- there was $15,000, for a new motor ehemlcal
engine, $55, 000, vorrowed for & new bathing house grounds
whioh hag never been expended.

Q T pelieve that has been talked of for some years.
ygﬂgg_ Inactive accounts and ocapltal expenditures would

be the sams- they ocould be very raadily ochaoked up.

Mr.Stewart

%. These oheques you produced topight for payments- they

gall cover payments in the reserve fund?

I

A. They wexe supposed o cover payments in the reserve

fund so that the woney might °° loaned to endhexr yesr.
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+ In favor of the reserve account?

%. Yes sir,

>

9 And that was so during the time that you predscessor
%as in office?

é. Yes sir,

é. Wag there any reason for Producing thege cheques?

%, I was asked to produce those checques to show the

&hanges of money.

Q. You didn't produce the vouchers which would easoccompany
%hoee cheques? - were not the vouchers for every cheque

?ertiELed by the Auditor?

%. No sir. .

%. How does the Auditor express his assent or certification?
e. It would have exprsssed it in two ways- ag & trustee

éf the reserve fund he would have knowledge of the

ﬁxansaqtion,_and as the Oity Auditor When he was examining
%he cagh of the treasury for those years he would have %o
#ntioe the withdrawal from one year and the credit to

éhe account of another year;

é. You mean to say that the Audltor except as Trustese did
ﬁot know of the trensfer being made from one year to
another? |

é. I think I made myself olear,

é. It is very'easy to enewsr the question,

i :
Mr Rglston  Knowing as trustes, he would know as the

Auditor— he 1s not & duel person.

A. The Auditor knew of the transfer—remember, you are-
aeking me something that I know nothing to do wlth at all
Q Why did you purport to anewer 1t?

ﬁ. I was asked to answer those questions through the booksa.

|

cbl. Raleton did.
Qi Things whioch you knew nothing about personally?

Personally , I 'don't know. There could have been loans
oh those different books prior to- 1916 that pereonally I

don't know anything about.

[
+

Q; As o matter of fact, Mr,Hopewell, a moment ago you sald
that Mr,Foster as & trustee knew of these changes, these

tranafers? “Ba ” |
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A, Yes,
@, ABd, as & matter of fact, you told me earlisr in the
évening that no resolution of the truetes authorized
eny of these transfers?
A, No resolution in the Minute Book of the sinking funde
or reserve funds regarding any such transfer,
Qs And you have no personal knowledge of him knowing
a8 trustee of thess transfaotione, or authorizing these
i'bra.nea,otions a8 trustes?
A, Nos
Q. No personal knowledgei
A. No.

Qand yet didn't you say to me a few moments ago that
;whenever these chaques for transfers from one year to
another were presented to the Mayor for signature, they
bore the ocertification of the Auditor,- he certified

the aoccount?

A, 1 did nothing of the kind,

Mr,Stewart I will let the record stand as to what you
; .
have said.

Witnese A statement showing the condition of those

%dcounts wae certified as corrsect by thne City Auditor

;nd that statement was shown to the Mayor before the

Leoesaary doouments and changes were made in borrowlng
%he thirty per cent. of the taxes.

Qs I think you will aoqulsce, Mr.Hopewell, when I say
ﬁhat the question that I asked yoﬁ formerly as to the

certifiocation of the Auditor had no reference to the

boriowmng of the thirty per cent- 1t had reference to

%he vayment off of formel borrowlngs- transfers from one

&ear t0 another?
A. Yos,

Mr.Ralston Mr.Stewart vsed the expression- he asked you

if the City Auditor certifled the transactlon- certified

e
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%he transactinn- certified it as correct- would it be
éuite proper to put it that wa&- the information which
@as contained in thaﬁ gtatement, dowlng the oondition«"'
?f those borrowing acoounts?

h.'You may call it what you likes the condition on which

we proposed to borrow the money— on whloh we would ask

bhe Bank Manager to loan us this money, showling the *
| ﬁncollected taxes and casq balance,-~ this was oert¢fied |

as correcte

9. It was a statement of information as to the bank

iaocount of that date, and that information primarlily

‘of@oourse would come from your office, you being

:qustodian of the funds?
;A. Yes o
Qe You sald also to my Learned Friend and me, as well,

‘that these cheques ocould only be out of oapital- why
do you say that?

'A. Por the reasgon that the uncolloected taxes and the

ioash,balanoe that we had exoceeded the money that we
éborrowed from the bahk - consequently, whatever balance
there was'in exoess of the conbined uncolleoted taxes
and bank balance must have been ocapltal- there wae no
other place to get it; |

5Mr.Rg;ston You have counted uncolleoted taxes as
capltal?

%AJ I could only speﬁk from the amount of uncollected
%taxee 88 was recorded in my books.

'%Q. You. spoke once or twlce of gome dooument- an original
%document— & ocopy of one of these statements that you
éreferred to- 4t is in the usual form?

% In the form that was submitted to the bank,

iq. Oontaining information that you have spoken about?

%A. Information I gave the bank.
oy
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Qe And also information you gave the Mayor?

t

A. The same thing~ of oourse it had to go to him first,
Q. The bank had the same information the Mayor had?
gA. The bank had the same information.

‘Mi.Ralston

After a lengthy examination of the charges
' I am gerlous when I'say that no court of law for
finding charges would substentiate charges of the

vegue and Indefinlte nature es these., In the usual

oourse of thinge the coungel for the trensactionk
*if I may put 1t that way, would open his case and
!explain exaotly what he is going to prove, This is
zan unusual case, and what I suggest now ie that the usuel
procedure should be suspended, thaﬁAis to say, My Leamned

EFriedn state whatever evidence he hag in gupport of

these odharges, then I am giving him the additional
iright and will anewer.,

@Alderman Blgsott

| I think I em voleing the opinion of the
;layment of this Counoil when I say that I believe the

icharges very epecific, and I think the repgular pro-
| |
cedure should be followed,

Solicitor Bell I think Oolonel Releton's request might
well be allowed. |
’Mr Stewart objeots and states unsual prooedure gshould

be followed.

@@&gg_ We would ask Mr, Ralston to speak %o the ‘Council
éin defence of the oharge which the council has already
%heard ageinst his olient, and then we can reply to him
%afterwards.

quu conocur in the opinion expressed by Mr.Stewart?

%The oouncil can follow the procsdure.

Z;dérman Power I move the qusstion be now puts

llderman Bigsett I second that motion, I don't want to

806 my friend make & motlon andnot have 1t seconded,
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f Mayor Withdraw it for a moment- until we discuss

- 1t, |

Colonel Ralston, are you prepared to prooeed on behalf
of your Client?

‘_Mr.Ramston Yes,

Alderman Power I willl have %o mavelthe motion out of

order..

Mayor I ask the council not to entertain it at thisg
stage. That ls not the course to followe The sol=
‘loltors having waded through this, I would aék the
council to be kindly guided by their advice, Mr.Ralston
are you prepared to proceed wilith your case?

Mr.,Relston « Ag much as I can be on shor% notices

Alderman Bissett wlthdraws hles support of the motion,

Mr,Ralston Mr,Mayor amd Gentlemen, this 1s not going

to be & speechs I am going to endeavor to draw your
attention to the varioue charges whioch have been made,
end as briefly as I can to draw your attentlion to the
‘gvidence whioch has been presented, and ﬁo submit to

you that there ls no evidence here on which you gentle-
men ocan entertaih favorably the motion whioch was made
by the Chairman of the Finance Committee a few evening

g ago. I do not know whether you gentlemen have

coples df the charges or not- I understand you have
coples of the charges—beginning with the first one,

and taking them juet in the order in which we find

them in the resolution pregented by the Finance

Committee. (reads first charge) No more technloal
charge obuld be presented against an offiolal as ground
for his dismissal. You have heard the counsel for the
oity, if I may put 1t that way- the counsel for the
transection for over an hour and & quarter, with the
Oity Tressurer, go over and Cver tne same thingy and

we have finally oomé back to the oonclusion which

was reached about the third questioh that lasked the

Qe

”
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the Clty Treasurer the first night, and even before
that- the firet question asked Aldermen Whituman-
whether or not these tfansfers‘whioh have been made
from year to yedr, and which are now the subject
of dlgoussion- and the evidence glven on the first
charge- whether or not that has not been the doings of
the olty for the last ten or twelve years. Whathappened
is that this olty, which has a bank acoount in 1914
geta a loan at the very first of the year from the
bank- that is put to the oredit of the account, and
salaries are pald out of it;.differeht diebursements of
the City works are made.'Taxes ‘are collected eradually
and at the end of the year a substantial balance remaine.
1915 opens and & brand new aoccount is kept., 1915 turns
up with a balanoe, whiohvis capital unaxpended, but ln’
the meantime 1914 has been geﬁting taxes in during
19156 If in 1915 people are paying in their719;4

taxes the balence is increasing and they can pay back
to the bank the thirty per cent, and still have some

balance on hands This ls what Mr.Foster is oharged

with, He and the City Treasurer, and the Mayor, solemnly
declde that 1t would be a good thing to save the olty
one thing lying 1dle there and use it and put it to
the oredit, temporarily of the 196 account, and when
1916 gets in funde then they bring this transfer

baock to the 1914 acoount. Tﬁere is no fear or no
suggestion thatﬁthe moneys of 191k are used for the
purposes of paying acocount of 191é. The City - iseues
oheques out of 1914 for services in 1916- so long as
you keep the funde in that account ear-marked, you
con tell immediately how much of that should be 1916
end what is 1914, When taxes are collected these

borrowings are returned and there has been ho payments

%o the 1916 account out of 19L4 money. 1916 is still

10w
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apart from 1914, and having come in funds it amounts
to gimply a ﬁem corary method of financing used every
day by eny business-house, and by the City for the
last ten yesrs., Further than that, Mr.Mayor and
Gentlemen, the City Charter provides, has provision for
the psy ment of account of one year out of the revenue
of another year, and you have hLeard Ghe Olty Treasurer
oross—-examined upside down and cross-wlee, but you
and everybody knew of the transactions and no objeotion
was made. Aldermah Whitmen had to remain himself the
other night that the funde of 1914 which are transferred
to 1916 are not‘revenue, but are capitels They could
not be revenue because all the taxes were not collected.
sIf they had been there would be no balance of revenuse
left running into another yesr. It is not a transfer
of 1914 revenus, but & trensfer of 1914 capitel (Reads
seotion 395 of Clty Charter) | Ig this amount which is

not in the estimates at all, ile that aporopriated to
Eany work oxr selvices?u Is that the fund that ls re-
gferred to in thie section? Mr.Mayor and Gentlemen,

| I do not think I hdve to labor that partlcular charge
veryflong. Further than that it ie not within the

'Statuwe at all, it does not come within that gectlon

gat all, but this hes been done in the City of Halifah,
‘and by Mayor after Mayor, men, legal gentlemen qnite
a nunber of them, who have had according to Mr, Hope-
%well the full facte put before them, and had & state-
kment presented to them showlng them the condition of
éaffairs, of the reserve account, and where it has been
%pdinted out to them that in order to finance this |
ETpa,r'tioula'r year of 1916 it would have ﬁo'borrow from
1914, Then they have uade these transfers, and further
;thaﬁ that 1f you‘will believe it, the commission of
%this offence, which is now charged asAbeing guch a

Zserious thing has been shown on the reporte of this City
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ever since 1910, Nobody hes prosecuted the City
Auditor, nobody suggested that he was doing wrong. He
has been allowed to remain Cilty Auditor all these years
and now the gity Council are telling fo the world

thet he is guilty of a crime deserving of his dlemissale.
That , Mr.Mayor smd Gentlemen, seéems $0 have been the
burden of my Learned Friend's exemination of Mr.Hopewell
tonight- as 1f there was something very serious in 1%)
you will find further then that thet youare lisble to.
ve dismissed poesibly this councll has 1tself voted

for these very purposes except Alderman Whitman, and yet-

it is proposed by My Learned Friend that Mr.Foster—

any one of these charges 1s quite sufficient to dlemiss

him- thet Mr,Foster les 1o be dismieaed becsuse of the

' commisslon. of this partioular churge. In that conn-

sotion I wish to point out the evidence of Aldermen

Whitmen himeelf. I asked him pointed out to him all the

differenma—years in whioh the Returns ghow thls has
ibeen done, 1921,1922- they borrowed from no less than
' geven different accounts- seven different years. I
isaid o) him ~"This is the thing which is now being
thazged againet Uz Foster" I don't know" he sald.

@ I said , "Vou think it is the same?" He answered "{t

looks 1ike it", In these different years loans were

l made to oertain other years. My Learned Friend may

| su&gest that there ie some difference when the borrow—

ing for 1916 is done for the purpose of repaying the
? E Bank loan end when 1t is for ‘the purpose of paying
% the Bank loan and when 1t 4@ fornthe purpose of paying ;

- policenen's salaly. It ig done- it is ueing the ncney

of one yéaf for another one, Feom the CLty Treasurer's

% cross-examination we find that ae late as 1918 the

' Qouncil directdd that they use $100,000, of City

- revenues for the purprose of Capital expenditure. That

- was an extraordinary occaslon. It is'perfeotly all right

=]2e
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'right for the Councll to do 1%- -use the revenue of ‘-

|

%the year for oapital expenditure, but when a City

|

%Auditor doee 1%, even though everybody knows he is
idoing 1t and even although it has been done for ten

' years, he should be dismiseed in order that the Clty
may save his superannuation fund. It is admbtted by

the Chalrmen of the Finanae Committee that 1t has been
done in thie City allvthese years., I sﬁbmit, Mr,

Mayor and Gentlemen, that I do not have to go very much
further in connection with that except to suggest

that 1t is rather peouliar to keep the funds on one
year soAsecret from another, Suppose you iésue bonds

this July, that you pay'the interest on those bonds

out of the oapital whioh 1s ralsed on those bonds and

next year put in the estimates a sufflolent sum to re-

pay beck this year. Examine it-thet is done all the

’ | i
| time. It is no wrong or sin I submit. Is there eny e
reason in the world why the Oity should have $750,000
of unocollected taxes- why that money should not be

used until some other year- until texes are colleoted?

The Oharter does not suggest any, yet it 1s the head-

‘11ner charge against Mr.Foster.

Now, tﬁe second charge. The Section which has tc do’
'with the reserve fund is 351 (3) -

The reserve fund was established in 1902 They realized
that 1t might be diffioult‘to ginance certein years
 and they wanted to eatablish some fund.for_the purpoee

.of helping along a year- we wlll use the une xpendsd
%balances and put them in a fund unfil 1t géts up to
i%?B,OOO. and that ie the reserve fund- they wers to go
to the reserve fund temporarily- for the tlme being, for

the purpose of tilding a year over its trouble, but

they say, according to Aldzrman Whitman that Mr,Foster

'was one of the trustees of the reserve fund and that he

did mnot tell Aldermen Waltman that he made these loans

%o these different years. The reserve fund is the cash. i
‘ 13
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account out of which money could be loaned to
verlous years, Tuey Palk about securities; that the
reserve fund could never be fepresented by securities,
| ALl that.means lg the obligation whioh e certain year
owes to the reserve fund to pay back the money which
has been borrowed, Lf the reserve fund was in operation
at all. Ordinarily'speaking, until you have loans mede
to ddfferent years how can there by any securities for
them? In 1916 , there is a record at the treasurer's
office of the dlfferent yeare to whioh the ressxrve
fund was loaned; .Are there any wminutes which show the
suthorization of these loans to any partloular year-
Mr.Hopewéll has sald there are not. Alderman.Whitman
wes asked about that toos I asked Alderman Whitman about
this feserve fund., I said "What did you find out as to
the deate that the reserve fund wag pelid out?" he says

" It ig in Mr.Foster's report; it ls away back. I was
Chairmen of the Fiance Committee from 1909-12, and

the lending of & dollar from the reserve fund never

came before us and there is no note in our Minutes; those
sre the years a large portion was loaned and the trustees

were the only ones to loan Lit, and they were Joaned

without the authority of the only people who could loan.

Mr.Foater was & trustee, but one trustee ocannot-act

. for the Board. I have looked up these Minutes that per—

heps Mr,Hopewell didn{t notiocses Aldsrman Whitman is

not correct when he saye there was no note in the Minutes

in regard to this. I have found in the Minutes that
Alderman Whitman was present atb meetings of the
trustees of this fund when a Stotement was presented by

the Auditor and signed by him ehowing'just the years to

which this reserve fund was loaned, and I have got those
| atatements here under my hand- and Alderman Whitman |
%tells me tnat there was no note in the Minutes of any ?

%kind and it was nsber brought up In a situation like

g . T )—‘-n—l
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Eth*s, when 1t le reportsd to you that such a year has

had & loan of so much, and so on, and that Statement is
;prasentad to you, and you make no objection to it of
any kind, and 1t is recorded in the Minutes, do you
think thet ls not en assent to the handling of the
reserve fund in that ﬁay? (Reads from MNinuitesof the
Trustees of the Sinking Fund held on November 17th, 1910)
"Preosent- The Mayor..ALierman Wiitman the City Aﬁditor.
The Mimtes of last meeting were read and approved"
(reads minutes). A Statement wes submitted at that
meeting by theCity Trgasuerer and a list of seocurltles
of the various trust funds., and, what do you find at

the end of that Statement,®

"Loan 1906 $11, 250,00
o | 1907 31, 806475
1908 . 11,850,00, meking a

ztotal of $5%,906,75%  In the Minutes is a Statement
thet the list was submitted, and here is the list sub-

mitted by the Oity Treasurer, When you have & list pre-

sented by an officisl of the Olity, and refsrred to in

the Minutﬁs of & meeting at which a gentlemen is pre- | l*
sent, he is bound to say " HP was never g¢ven an opor— \
tunity" Al derman Whitman stotes th%t there is no note

1n the Minutes about any of these amounts being 1oaned.‘
The Minutes of the meeting &t whloh hewas present and the
1ist of the securities afe there, yet the position that

be takes now ls why you could not have loaned that

%eeerve fund to 1906~ I did not know that in 1907.

%hera was o losn of $31,000, in 1908 over $11,0004 There
ﬁae no sign of objectlion, Hls memofy has falleds Why
;hould the Clty Audltor be told that these matters
%ere'never brought up- here we have the documentaxy
évidenoe of the Clty Treasurer in offlce., The date of

%hat neeting was 1910, Between 1909~ 1910 - there was

ihree different meetings between‘thése dates at which
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these Statements were presented. Take the meeting

of July 16, 1909, a year beforse ( Reads form minutes)
E-Minutes of Meetiqg of the Trustees of the Sinking
%Fund held July 16, 1909. Present: The Mayor, Alderman
Whitman and the City Auditor. Minutes of last meting

3 .
were read and approved, A Stotement llsting the

geourities on hand certified as correot by the Avditore
Signed W,L. Brown, J.A.Chigholm® There is a 1l8% of
gseourlties dated on the backin haﬁds of Olty Treasurer
on July 164, 1909 ; I am reading from Minutes of
meeting held July 16, 1909; The statzment is that these
% Minutes are read and approved, that the Clty Treasurer

submitted & list of securities, and that thle liast

- was certified as correct by the Oity Auditor; and

dated July 16th, 1909¢ I have produced and pProved
- copleg of the Stateménts in nis offioe.referrred to in l \!
these Minutes in oxder to identify thenu I want to | |
point out that in tﬁe next Minutes- the Minutes of

§ the next meeting, held two months after, the Minutes

E.of the last meeting, at which the llst was presented,
% were read and approved, Aldermen Whitmen wes presenﬁv
on that occasion ag well. The list submnm itfed ghows

' the various acoounts to wlch the reserve fund was

" losned,~

| 1903 asoount ¥ 23504 00

| g0k 8850 400

;, 1905 " 11500400

% 1906 " 16750400

| 1007 " 12050,00 meking e total of

$51,500,00 and at the end 1s the certificate of the
Oity'Auditor. The Trustees, including Alderman Whitman,

were aware that these moeys were losned and that trans—

fers were made, He hegrd the Minutes read and approved

and heard them call the 1iet of securltiles, and. he knew

that as fer as the Regerve fund was concerned it ocongisted !

] B
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of moneys which ware}due by one year to anothsr.

At the next meeting,about éix monthe after, at which
Alderman Whitman was agaln precent, the City Treasurer
submittéd a list of securities held by hin, the same
having been certified by the City Auditor, and dated
Maroh 7th, 1910, I have in my hand the list of
securitiss dated March Tth, 1910, and wnder the hand
of the Clty Auditor at the tail end of that list is

the reserve fund scoount«

Lean $904 $ 5,250,00
1905 1,100,400
1906 16, 750400
1907 31,806.75

He attended the next meeting and heard the last Mimites
read and approved, but Mr. Foster 1s o be fired today
for having dealt with reserve funds without notlee %o
him. My Learned Friend took considerable time tonight

to get frow the Oity Tressurer the fact that theee
funds- moneys- had been lodned to other years th@ﬁ the
ourrent year in wes dealt with. He orosséexamined him
agd got him to state that the reserve fund wa.e loaned,
for instance, in 1916 to 1914, He was going to make
it ‘a condition of the City Oharter that it must be
loaned to the year in which you were aotually working,
If it ig 1915 and you want to deal wlth the reserve fund
you oan 1oan‘it to 1915, he would say you cannot loan to
1914 or 1913 to pay back lank loans; you cannot loan to
those years- only to thg year . He would emphasiie
emphatlcally these ocharges whioh are belng made as
justification for dismiseing the City Audltor. Unless
Authorized by an act of the leglslature, 1t shall not

be lLawful for the ocouncil to borrow on the credlt of

ithe Clty any sum of money whatsoever, except a loan in

¢

|
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in antiolpation of the year's taxes as herelnbefore
brovidéd".'l'submit that "the yéar's'taXes " doee not
meen taxes in that'partioulam year, but any year's

taxes which need the money. He 'authorlzed and per-

imitted the reserve fund 0 be used fo:Years'other than

the year in which the transaotion took place’ Will

you belleve 1%, th&b in 1910 they loaned to 1907 the

"a¢¢ference between $1e, 000, which wae loaned in July

909, and $31,000 which was loaned Maroh T+th, 1910,
in other words,1mau they loened $19,000 to the year
1907 between 1909 and 1910, and vet uhey were the
Year's taxes. Hme oontention,‘after the examlnation

of the City Tre&éurer,-will be that that can't be done

|The trustees were there, Is Mr,Foster to be dlsmissed
~ |for what Aldormen Whitmen hes ratified and donet
|The nexﬁ'meetingwas held on November 17th, 1910, will

you believe me that between M&rch and NoveMber, 1910,

Ithey hed loaned 0 1908 $11,850,00 , end that a statement
'.Was presented at that neetJng,xwhloh Alderman Whitman
. attended- presented as parb of the securlties of the

|City, and that Alderman Whitman:came'tO"he next meeting

end heard the Minutes read end pdseed;_and ratified.
Mr Mayor and Gentlemen I submit that there is no gound
for sahlng that ﬁhe Oity Auditor has ocommitted any

offence whatever in connecticn with these funds— 1f they

oonsider thet thet is the iaterpretation of the Oharter,
ehe bleme shouldnot fall on the City Auditor. If that
weg  wrong should they, such estimabmb gentlemen, who
conourred in what wag done , say 1t e geound for

the dismlssal of the GityAuditor in his year of Grace
1924, So much foi the gecond oharge. No record in the
Mimtes, when & full'statement was presented showing

exaotly Where the reserve fund wes, end the Minutes

| prutified by the Chalrmen of the Fimence Commlttee now

and then , so that we do not nave to take that evidence
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due of course to Alderman Whitman's memory; The next

oh&rgé ies with regard to under-deposit by the Secibstary | ﬁﬁ

o f the Houslnp Commlssion. Thers has been @xtreme evidence i

on that. In & report whidh wes submitted oy Price, Water-

house & Coupany bhey state that,=

"A reconciliation of all cash recelpts and disbursements |
as shown by the Cash Book with the Deposite and with- 1
drawals as shown by the Bank sta-ements, disclosed the
fact that all cash entered in the cash book up to
October 31, 1922, had not been depcsited in the Bank as
received. The under-denosit in Bank was apperently made
- up in November 1922, during whloh month the deposits
were approximately @3,300.00 in excess of the rscelpts
shown py the Cash Book, We. understand that the addition-
al deposits were made as the result of the Inslstence
~of the City Auditor or that the bank deposlts should

be brought up to date, but so far as we can ascertain
the matter was not reported to the Commission

This is the only evidence submitted on & charge that i

i
e NS

e e e el T

"the Oity Auditor being aware of the misappropriaiion of
large sume of MONEYes«esssss did wilfully and in breach
of his duty as such Clty Auditor omlt to report such mis-

sppropriation to cthe sald Housing Commlssion or to the

ity of Hallfax, but on the;obntr&ry did conoceal such
'iﬁ'ormation." It means that the independent suditors

who were brought down here by this City for the puzpose

of going into the accounts found Thomas Hayes as having

reoeivea so much money the full amount of which Was not

| 1 ‘idepositad in the bank as reoeived. They dld not them&elvea

’ i  ,suggest, es I think, that there wag any appropriation

'%y Mr.Hayes of that money. All they say is that 1t was
.ﬂunder—depoéit". Thé city Auditor es a result inslsted
thot additonal depoeits be mede and that the bank account

wae brought uy to dates Under-deposit means misappro-

briation? ~Unfortunately for such & contentlon the

| Ohalrm&n of the Finsnce Committee tonlght has moved,
z and this Councll has rassed unanimously that the charge
Wh&h says that the Oity Auditor w ell knew that large

eums of money belonging tothe City hed besn misappro»

priwted. They were under- ~deposit. You have expressly

w19w
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% decided that the oharge as to knowledge of wisappropriation |
should be struck out. You cannot now lsave in the

knowledge of misaeppropriation by Mr,Hayes , when the i

| | only evidence 1s thet of these amditors who do not take i
the responeibility that there was eny misappropriation

in conneotlon with those funds. What is the sltusationi-

ety e T T P

the sltuation is shown by the evidence; Price, Waterhouse i

& Co. found that Thomse Hayes had undér—depoéit &

certaln sum of money in the bank, the amount of which 4
lwas shown &én his Cash Eook—shown there for the world !

‘to see., He simply did not deposit it in the bank, but ’%ﬁ
through the inslstenoe of the Clty Audltor he did 2

|deposlt 1% end the transaotion is closeds, There are sugg- o

egtlons that the Clty Audltor should have reported ik
that Thomas Hayes had migeppropristed money- the City
Auditor is in rather a peoullar position in regard to

the Houeing Commission. The Housing Oommission Aot

gprovides. Quotes Housing Commission Act, 1919, Ch, &

!section 18, sub-section 7. There ls no evidence that
| i
Q"ohere wae any request that the City Auditor take on !z
thls jobe There is no suggestion whatever of the loss

of & single cent, or any defaloation whatever. Some i

such suggestion must be made if thie charge 1is going

’ to be sustained at all, and, notwithséanding the faot

’ 2 | %hat Mr,Fogter did not have fo touwch this thing at all,

' E Mr Foater by insisting on thie men meking up hie

; deposit hes thereby made himself liable to be diemissed.
You gpentlemen know the provislons of the Clty Charter wlth
regard to what Mr.Fogtert's duty ls. What did he do in

My Hayes! oase. He took lmmedlate steps to bata an audit

made every week in order to see that he did not under-

éepoait his aooount. I submit, Mr.Mayorend Gentlemen,

that there was no such request by the Housing Commlsslon,

eeoondly, that Hayes dld not refuse to hand over, or

negleot £0 pay over these moneys- that the evidence lg just
‘ 20-




—p1-

ig just the opposite, that the report of the Auvditors

showed an under-deposlt of the funds, which funds were

Paid over tolthe City ofi. the insistence of the Clty
| |
Auditor, nemely, as a result of his doing hils duty, that

you have dlsmised out of this charge any suggestion that

Fr Fogter knew of misapnropriatlon, and 1f you had not
dismissed 1t you had not evidence that there was any
misappropriation. One of the mewbers said, 'He knew

these monies were stolen- as accessory after the fact"

When all thelformalities of a oourt have peen followed
we have been endeavoring td“my'these charges le that

the way to treat this matter- should 1t be treated'by
this Councll in that weay. | |

means to ascertain the revenue of the Clty, the revenue
received by the Clty Bollector, the Clerk of Works,

phe Secretary of the Housing Bommisgion and the City
blerk.

& nave slready dealt with the Housing Commisslon, What
gs the Oiﬁy Aﬁditor required to do? They say he neg-
leoted to asoertain the reveme received, How do you
aecertain the revenue reoeived? He goes into the City
Polleotor s offlce- there are the oheques , ocheque
Etube, Cash Book- and he says show me these things.

He oheks up the amount into the Ledger— he goes to the
Transfer book, which is the book- the voucher passing
between him end the Oity Treasurer. He finds it all
right. I that neglecting to ascertain the revenue?
Should he constithte himself o quallfied Clty Clerk and

dp the work of a Oity Olerk and & Clty Assessor. Should

he go over the Agsessment Roll and see that people are
baying up their taxes, & large proportion of these
away back, and constantly oheck them up? A simple

way to asceptain the revermes Formerly, and I think

wmsely, the City Charter provided o way of checking up

kaxage that method was not WY COVqsaapine g by
f 21

Now, ‘the 4th oharpe] - the negleot to take eny effective .

i e CE
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Auditor a City Qomledﬁor. 1% reqﬁiréd theycity 1
Colleotor to lay on'%ﬁe”ﬁable of this Council onoe‘a
month a report showing the separate amounts on acocount

of taxes- a list showlng the total amount of uncollect—

od taxess

know who had pald hls taxes and everybody would be keen
to gee that hies tax paymenta'appeared in this public
Statement which was presented to the Council once a
month, That fell into disuees The City Collector was
relieved of that duty altogether, Somebédy ls to he
blamed for that- the Olty Auditor wes not told to teke
14 on. he has been blamed for almost evefything glse,
Was there sny revenue shown on the books of original

entry that the City Miditor did not check upt That

were still uncollected in this City; the present un-
oolieoted taxes amount to $513,000 . It willvprbbably
take years for the Oity to get oleaned up, Do ot blame
on the City Auditor a‘duty Which ﬁevelvedﬁ on the Clty
Collectors ' There is no evidence that there was &ny
revenue received shown on the booke of the City
Collector that the City Auditqr did not check up.

The City Olerk ils also mentioned here- !'that he negleoted
to ascertalin the revenus recei#ed by the CityClerk, !

In 1502 & new system was inaugurated- by a ohenge of
regime cash was collscted by another officlal. Yet 1%
ig the Oity Auditor's duty for fthe purpose of Justi-

fying the recommendation that he be dismissed.

,The only thing thet 1s left of that Statement is the
fact that the Oity Clerk recelved $450, for Cemetery

xlote and did not pay 1t over as soon a8 he gotity

iThe ¢ity Clerk took this on a8 & purely temporary Jobe

éImmediately 1t became the City Audltor's duty to rush

~22

Section 321 provides (Reads section) Till then you would

i T e e S

is the suggestion whioh ls mede, I April, 1923, $728,000
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anto the City COlerkls office every wonth and see that
?he City Clerk was depositlng mon ey just as soon as
%eoéived. The City Olerk was telking on something that
%as not hils job.w‘it'was only’@mporaryé A few lots
@ére gold- the thing to do was to audit them when they
éot through - when the sale was completed. There is no
guggesﬁion that the mohey wae not pald over, There was
not a oent received by the City Clerk as shown by the
%ooks that was not deposited with the City Treasurer, &nd
%here were no funds feoeived, shown on the bhooks, which
"tbe,éity Auditor did not check up. (Reads 5th oharge)
%ection,BZO of the City Charter provides "He shall pay
éver each day all sums by him so oollectfed to the
%reaeurer, taking his recelpt therefor, oertified by
the Auvditozr",

It was suggested that any of this money that was not
palid over on the day it was reccived- My Learned Friend
clalims such monies were in defaloation, and that the
City Auditor did not me that the Oity Clerk peid over
the money tﬁe same d&y as he redelved 1lt,

Seotlon 220 saye ! pay over the money every day' and,

1 it shall be certified by the auditor!

[

Ybu wiilvremember'Mr Hopewell descrlbed the syetem,

If payments are made in 191k, 1912, 1918 ohsaccount

of water and sewers, the result is you have got to go
d&wn- 1f you have & Cash Book for those different
yéars you have got to enter 1t under the proper columns
gét the Transfer books for those years, which ls the
véuoher for the deposite- you have got to uaks up a
siip, and take that to the Clty Treasurer and Deposit
i%. I can shdw you in the very book which has been put
iﬁ after the former Olty Odlleotor had gone that moneys
wﬁioh had been vald in in the month of July were belng

p&id in the City Treasurer's office as late as the last
of Auguat end lst of September- that was undar the new
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| ;egime; Why, you ask me? The reason is beoasuse in
{uly 1s the great rush on acocount of tax discountse

All the Olty Collector's office can do is to pay the

money into tax and to keep it in the best shape they
can untlil they get a chance to enter it in all those
books. That will go on- 1t cannot help but go on.

Unless you have a staflf of flfty people how are you going

to handle all the moneywhioh oomes in et those rush | i
times? The result is that you cennot pay over every }i
Aay as fast as the money comes in, It is left there | | |
for days and weeke at a time, and that will continue

until the staff ls substantlelly inoreased, A serious

charge should be made agalnst Mr.Foster for not seeing , ‘if

to it that money was pald over under oclroumstances

e T P P S

when 1t oould not be pald over, He would have 1o g0
down ﬁhere, check with the varlous Oash Books the

enormous amount of money which 1s received at those

t@mes, check wlth the transfer books- from the recelpis

Stube- the rocelpt which hed been signed by the Clty
T&easu&er. In the Transfer book of 1923 you wlll find
tpat tax dlscounts were under-sllowed in September
.b§ reagon of the fact that the amounts had been pald
i% July but were not pald in the Treasurer's office
uﬁtil the last of August or the first of Septembers
Tﬁ& must heppen, and willhappen, and you will find
t%at just a year before that , the year which ls
réferred to, in that very year during the month of
Aégust these dlscounts were etlll being taken- thls
uéder the new regime when they would deposlt every day
d&wn in September 1l2th, they are still depoelting monies

whioh have bsen pald in under cebh dlscount. You cannot

expeot Mr,Foster to see that something was bbing done

wﬁioh could not be done even when the new scheme was

being inaugurated. Turn to the Tramsfer Book Tor 1921,

2l
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yonies which were paid in in November were not de-
&bsited until Decsmber. When the water rates come in
%hey are & little more careful, - the monies which
%are deposltéd regularly, every day, were monles on
?ocount of water- the only thing allowed to get back
@as the ourrent acocount, $6,000, was not deposited
until September let. You will find sings of the Oity
Aunditor's activity when on'Februaryllst gvery cent

of money whioch had omme in to that office up to the

night before was pald over and transferred to the City
?reaeurer's office, and that uhder Mr.Foster's reglme
Is the OityAuditor o walk into the City Oollector's
%ffioe every dey of hls life and audlt the aoccount

%here? The Charter does say, - the receipt by the

Oity T veasurer shall be certified by the Auditor. Mre

?oster' g audlt was a monthly one- payments were made
%ut no entries were made on tle books of the Oity.

| | |
Miss@owen has not yet initialled every February Chegue,

|
i

only down to & oertain date. The Auditors reported to
&r.Fosten that to carry on the work of the offlce as
ﬁe had endeavored to do would take four hands, and to
éb it as 1t should be done it would take elghte The
%uties‘of the Oity‘Auditor are contained &t page 301
ie there any suggestion that the Auditor did not sudit
%nce o month~- that one dollars has gone estray? The
Reoeipt books are here, I8 the Auditor to be a de-
teotive and o pollcemen and 8 hendwriting expert to be
able to digoover that Recelpt Books are being mutxl&ted
@nat money ls being received and not entered into the
éooke? There is no sugmeetion that he has not made his
monthly sudit- no suggestlon of a dollar defaulteds I
gubmit Mr.Mayor and Gentlemen, that that charge 1s the
moet flimey of the 1ot The first thing le thab it is

not supported by the situation that arlees, namely,

that i 1s impossible for the Cityimdxkaxx Collector
-25 |
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?o pay over the money letAalone to let the City
@dditor gudit 1t, The defaications, for which every-.
%ody now is trying to blame somebody else, were caused,
éa the,books show, not by any Lleglect on the peart of
%he City Auditor, but because of the fact that Receipt
@ooks were mutilated and ﬁax bills were improvised so

g .
that there would be no record in the City Collector's

| .

gffioe of the recelpt of these monies. There is no

| .

?videnoe of any negleot of the Auditor- that 1t ls due

*’fco, any neglect of the Olty Auditor that the Olty ie out

éome money., Who knew that he had money on hend end

|

ﬁas not paylng it overt Every cent shown on his books

%as been transferred to the Clty Treasurer,

The last charge I do not know where they‘get thate

if the Oiﬁy Auditor had done any of tlme things the

éity would not be owing eny money$ the Independent
Auditors will tell you that & men cen tear out Receipts,
gnd lssue tax bills to people on his own letterheads,
and 1t will take more then & City Audltor to ocatdéh him.
ﬁen have been peid to catoh defeloations of that kind.
%he suggestion now is that the City Audlitor neglected

go do somé duty which is not defined and that is putting
%t on pretty thick, duties whioh extended from the

| .

City Home to Rookhead Prison taking in the services of

!
& corporatidn that turned over some %5;000,000.00 g ysar,

%nd no one to do the work but himeelf and his assistant,

3 ﬁe neve Alderman Wnitman's evidence- "This has been

going on ten years; if the thing was not borrowed shen

| &ears sgo we would not be able to pay our bllls and

ﬁould kXnow where we stood and 1t would be cleaned up “
ﬁen yeers ago". If the Olty Auditor had not permitted , gi

ﬁhese borrowings you would have been up agalnst a stone

ﬁall.n then you would have collected your bille more

ﬁromptly. The Oity Auditor is not a tax collector yet

ﬁhis is the burden of this charge. Mr.Mayor and Gentlewen,
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T am not going to put on any sob stuff fox Mr.Foster,

but he has served thig City £r about thirty years. During
a1l the time the Independent Auditors were making the

investigation he remained at his post; he was not gus-
pended; he stayed on the job all tihrough the time. Lthey

wera there. He 1s compedlled to resign on account of 1ll-

health as fhe certificate of his physician can siow-=
and he is to be diemlssed from offioe; I have endsavor- i
ed to put his oase before yous I subnit there is\not i
and has not been any evidence which WOuld juetlfy you

taking the eotion which 1t ig suggested you take, I

AT

g et ———— Y

gubmit that 1t is a pretty serious state of affairs. In
the report of the Independent Auditors they state, " ;

{
Nothing nes arisen during the course of our investigation %

whioch would lead us to doubt the honesty and integrity

of the City Auditor". It is & gerious situation, In
spite of that, he 1s 10 be dismissed? If you fesel that 1
© you have done the pight thing in voting for his dis-

wiesal, I submit that there never has been & et of

guch flimsy charges brought agalnst any publioc official

| holding & responsible position which are brought here,

s et g i T e R
Ry e e el e

and the subgect of your condideration, As & City
. offlcilal he has endoavored to serve this City welle~-
% Take the case of someons in your Bmploy- & trusted

officisl in your business— should My, Foster be branded-

should it be on the records of thise C;ty that he was
- guilty of these charges? He has his legel rights in
z the courts so farves the finding of fact is concerned.
| % Why bleme the Clty puditor for what has happend, but
| ~ somebody must ve blamed and there is the suggestlon,
. ' Let's pass the pegolutions I may be & gnall thing to

gome gentlsmen-.l gubmit it 1s & most serious thing-

tosend him forth as guilty of these chargess

27~
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MR, STEWART I want to call your attention to a few

%taﬁutory,pxoviaiom. I sugzest that what My Learned
?riend read from page %01 does not swumarize the duties
éf a Clty Auditor. I can aseure you ¢f that - read
%ection 326 and you will sese that the Oity Auditor is

% very lmportant and responsible offiocial of this City-
?The avditor shall aduit, inspect , oheck and correct
éll books, accounts and recelnts, and supervise all
finanolal business of and oonneotéd with the corporation
of the Oity and shall perform such other duties pertain-
ing to his office as the Counoclil from time to time

requires him to perfomm", The City Audltor is a Minister

of Finance under the Charter, He has supervision over

all finanocial business of and connected with the cor-
éoraﬁion of the City. In addition to that My Learned
ﬁriend did not read this portion of what 1s to be found
Jn page 301,~- Ordinance No.? sectlon 4, sub-section?-
JNO warrant shall’bevﬂigned by the Mayor or Clerk until
the auditor fifst certified as to the corrsctness of the

cocoutrt for which i1t is drawn, and that there are funds

ut of which it may be properly paid"s I thilnk your

o Seotion 326, and Section 4 , sub-sectlon 3 of the

&
0
Worship and Gentlemen, that having oalled your attention
t
0

?dinanoe I need say nothing"more in regard to the first
ahd doeocond charges. It 1s established beyond peradventure
b& Mz, Hopewsll's evidence thet the accounts of various
years, numerous yeares, from time to tlme weree utilized
for the payment.of accounts that properly belonged. 0
other~years. It is also olear beyond peradventure theb

tbe reserve fund was devoted to loans to years othsr
than the ourrent year- that ls olear- the faote are

eetabliahed beyond possibility of digpute. The main

aﬁewer my Lesrned Friend makes is this, - Alderman Whitmen

fifteen years ago knew that something of the seme sort
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was belng done, and in order to prove that Aldermen
Whitmen knew what wae being done e refers to Minutes
which ln turn refer to anbther dooument, froanhidh
alone I say 1t 1s impossible for anyone to conclude that
Alderman Whitmen, or the Mayor, or anyonse elss knew that
money wue béing loaned from the reserve fund to any |
other than the ourreat year. It is abundently clear that 'Q
these trensfers from one year to the other out of the
reserve fund were in every case unauthorized , mede
without any resolutdon of the trustees of the sinking

fund and reserve funde He reads from three reports of

S T L o W At e

the City Auditor mede away béock in 1909 , 1910 and 1911,

nresented ae the assumption of something that has been

donés It may prove and probably it ls true that the

.
- g L L L e g o

v
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repoért of of the trustees showed how:oertain money hed
been loaned, but undsr the Charter the real question,ise é;
wes the money loaned from the raéerve to the year in x
rhich it was loaned, and was it loaned in anticipation

»f the colleotion of the taxes for that yser? In

connection with the City Collector I have to refer to,

(the only other charge in reepect of which I have to

lieke reference to the Charter), Section 320 (reads |
eotion 320)e The charge steted with reference to the %g
Yty Auditor is this,~ that he knew at all times, ’
avery book in the Oity collector's office shows that
the.Oity Collector was rataining in his hénds'for perilods
bf weeks monles whioh by section 720 of the Charter were
directed by the Charter to be deposited daily., In reply
bo that oharge, whioh 1s established beyohd guestion,

tners is not the slightest question that the oharges
are proved, admitted tacitly but the argument wmy Learned
Triend makes- what he contends is this- 1t hed toBe-
The Transfer book down to the end of the 1923 shows

shomething happening ymzxx in the last three monthe of

that year that has been hepvening vears and vesrs in

...29'
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and years in the City of Halifex. In the'ourrent year
there is a daily deposit from the Colleogtor's office
to the Tremsurer, The first three whole monthe Mr. - E
Dimock was able to make his desposits delly. My Learned
Freidd argues 'let ue toteasonable 's He takes one
illustratibn from the year 192%- goes back to July-

he goes back to & period between-thé diemissal of
Theakston end the appointmentof Dimook . and from that
‘he argues that becausd one or two sums were held over ;
4% was impoesible for Theskston to carry out the law.

That mey be an argument in Thesketon's favor- it is

g T
e o ey ey ok e

none in Mr.Foster's favor, Why was this oherge inserted?

Why doss the Finance Committee contend thet monles were

i
f
1 B
¢

being held back by the Colleotor and that the City
Auditor wes not mguiring him to deposit them e and
when received? I will tall you why- what was done Was
thig ,~ day after day he would recelve and put in his
cash book bille and would hodd them until a bilg ohedue
came in from one of the bigger tax-payers of the city-
this wee then paid over in payment of & large number
of scoounts, thie was the very epportunity that the
City Auditor gave to him by not requiring him to deposit
" %he money deily. The City CGollector oould receive and
catalogue bille and coing until & large cheque cme 1
from & rate-payer like Mr.Roy or Mr. Paige- that cheque
would be payable to the City of Halifax- that would bf
course not be diverted- the Collector could then pass
on to dthe Treasurer in payment of & large number of
book sccounts this big ohedque from one tag tak payer

end then not make an entry of Mr.Roy's or Mr.Palge's

peyment in his books., That was the.oppmrtunity'that
was glven. to the Oity Jollotor by the Auditor not

carrying out the dutles imposed upon him by the |
puditor. Tat ie what resulted in the loss of $100, i

000,00 in sotual cash, stolen, %o thie City, and

=30
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end that is Why the Gity Collector this year could
not end dere not sell the various properties on
whioh three or more years! taxes were dus. That one
omission has had the effect of bringing the City of
Halifax to the finanoial position in whioh 1% finds
itself today=on the finanolal basls from which thie
|0lty is suffering today- because the City Auditor
permitted the Oity Collector to ocatalogue,.15,20 ,30

or 40 daye ' cash in his Oash Books and then when-
aver a large oneque‘oame in nade payable to the City

of Halifax pay 1t over in payment of a large number

of tax aooounts. That to my mind is the correct and
absoluﬁely falr dlagnosis of our present position,

In addiﬁion tdkthat-in the Housing Oommiasibn, surely
1t s the City of pn Abdltor when he finde that there
are arreams piling up to inquire into the cauese of
thet- to queetion and cross-question the official

whose duty it, is to oolleot them, Not at all, we

find that he allowed Mr Hayes to get behind in hils
aoéounte to ‘the extent of $3500,00 We find that b®
gave him an oppertunity to do that. We find that

i1t wee made up, bub wfortunately a short time efter-
wards the same offence ls repeated. "Under -deposit"
ig & nice word- misappmopriation is just a synonym

the same thing, exoept one is anonymous and the other
1g oalling a spade & ‘gpade, On acoount of his knowledge
of that misapproprietion, defaloation- ocall 1t anything
you 1ike — the City is today faced with e deficisnoy

on the bond of the Secretary- (Mr.Ralston objects %o
&r.Stewart stating things as facts which ars not on
tne record before the Council in eny way or entered)

{R.STEWART I submit that this Le not a court of lew, this

body has not the power to administer en oath- 1t is

s, ourious thing that in spite of all the evidence that
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that hes ocome before the Oouncil in respsct to the
peréon whose oconduct is in qgeéﬁion, e has not seen

fit to appear befbre you. and make a Statement - if he
wes unjustly accused he could come before you andmeke

s, Statement on his own behalf, My Learned Frlend sayé
further in referenceto thaf there was morse work in

the Auditor's offilce thaﬁ could be done by the Staff
they had- there was more work th%p he and his assiétant
could overtake. There ls not the slightest evidenoejthat
the Oity Auditor ever asked for further assistance

from the Council, no suggestion that he ever wanted
further assistances Hig duties are set/ggt geveral
paragraphs of the Charter, If he Wa.s unable o oarry out
‘those duties why did he not report fo the Counoil, to
the Mayor, t0o someone in euthority- ask him for some
suggestion to enable him to carry out his duties, With
reference to- turn again to the Housling Commissi-n
report~ My Learned Friend has based his arguement entlre-
1y on the faot thatAthe Independent Mutitors report
goes Hayes may have had the money in his pocket or hile
Oash Box, It is olear that Mr.Foster digcussed the
matter with Mr;Hayes— why did not Mr,Foster come before
ue and tell us that the money wee In hie Cash Boﬁx

or pocket- 1t was avallable wenever he asked for it

the Plain ordinary meaning ls that Mr.Foster knew of

the defaloations and gave thme for the Seoretary of

the Housing Commission to make good his default without
reportiﬁg to the Oounoil or to the Mayor, He says be- "
cause the Maybrs xnew that Trensfers were being mede

from one year to amother, and beocause Aldermen Whitmen

might have know it Lf ne had picked up the annual
reporte and acanned them carefully from cover tO OOVer.

for that reason, Gentlemen, your predecessors and the

Mayors in offlce the 1ast twenty yearsare oalled gullty
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With.M:.Foster. Can aﬁ§ﬁhing be more unjust or unreason-
able then e suggestion of thaﬁkind?”Mr{Fosterhas
cocoupled & position the duty of which is to keep ckéok
on thet thing. It wag his duﬁy Primarlly to advise you
clearly that this or that ie being properly done in

‘the transaction of the City's business, It is not for
the Mayor I submit to Dbe asfuté enough to change & \
certified voucher of the City Auditor when presented

to him by the City Treasurer or anyone else, It is the
Mayor's right and perhaps duty to slgn it, not to
questlm 1%, I submit, If by certifying every account
the City Auditor 1 certifying in mccordence with the
Ordinance at Page 301, that is what he le saying to

the Mayor, I oertify.thatthis account is correot and
that there are funds out of which 1t may be properly
palds Twe Mayor is entitled to rdly on that abso-
lutely and the complete reﬁponsibility for the cor-ect-
ness of the account and the fund from which 1t is drawn
regts primarily, absolufely and solely on the City
Auvditor, My Lesrned Fr&end has mede & very elodquent
addrese- reremerked on the length of services of the
Gity Auditor- he appealed to your sympathy- my only reply
ﬁo that le that this Couhcil should consider first the
City of Halifsex and the Tax- payers who are today bearing
the burden of taxation, facing a finencial position

and responslbility whioh has been largely dus by the
|faillure of this Auditor to ocarry out the provisions

of the Charter and the Ordinasnce, In exerclsing your
vote on this resolution I would suggest that that should
| be borne in mind equally with the length of services

uf Mr.Fostér.

The Mayor reads the following communicati n signed by

Alderman Munnle-
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"For business re&sonéwl em obliged to be away from

the Oity for & short period end wish to inform you
that I have today arvenged with Aldermen Schaffuer to

WP qﬁf"‘on the Foster dquestion®
(Dated March 25%h, and addressed to the Mayor)
ngor gtates he knows of no poweré the Counoll has to
|arrange any such"Pairing off" and thaf he has dlscusned
the matter with the solicltor and he has never heard of
any such arrangemant. |
Mayor Does any member of the Council desire %o agk mny
question or be better ifformed on any matter that has
veen brought ap at eny of these Hearings.? Throughout
the entire discussion of the tlhree svenings thils matter
has bsen oh T have endeavored, personally, and I think
the members of the Councilhave, to extend a very wide
soope to the ingulry, to glve the golioltor acting for

Mr,Foster every opportunlty to fully state hle Client's

carefully stated to the Oouncll, We have from the soli-
citor of Mr,Foster hls own appreciation of the Counrt-

joles and the privileges extended, end I am quite sure
|whatever deoision ig Teachsd there can be no objectlon
|raised fron that regard, This Oounoll has patiently
dealth with this and udless there ls any further dle-
cwesion I prépqse to now put the votes Unless thera is
e question- piooeed with the votea

A Motlon was roed that the report of the Finanos
Committes dated the 1&th day of February A. D, 1924 " is
tonight emended" (Resolution read, a8 amended) Re-
solution moved by Alderman Whitman and eeoonde@ by W.,0a
Oameron

Mayor We will procead to vote on that Resolution, as
600

he result of the vote wos a8 followss

Bl

cage, and I think that the O0ity'e case has been equally

oo e 1 dowt 11 = s
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Alderman Whitmen, Sanford, Bissett, Gastonguay Cameron
(H.W.) McDona,d Guildford, Whelem, O'Toole, Drysdale
W.0, Cameron and Daw for; Alderman Colwell, Finaly,

Schaffner and Hubley againet.
Mayor The necessary two-thlrds vote of Council 1is

confirmed , passed.
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